Public Document Pack

Cheshire E@,

g
Council#

Health and Adult Social Care and
Communities Overview and Scrutiny
Committee

Agenda

Date: Thursday, 3rd December, 2020
Time: 10.00 am
Venue: Virtual Meeting

How to Watch the Meeting
For anybody wishing to view the meeting live please click in the link below:

Join live event

or dial in via telephone on 141 020 3321 5200 and enter Conference ID 474 767 098#
when prompted.

Please turn off your camera and microphone when entering the meeting and ensure they
remain turned off throughout.

The agenda is divided into 2 parts. Part 1 is taken in the presence of the public and press.
Part 2 items will be considered in the absence of the public and press for the reasons
indicated on the agenda and at the foot of each report.

It should be noted that Part 1 items of Cheshire East Council decision making meetings
are audio recorded and the recordings are uploaded to the Council’s website

PART 1 — MATTERS TO BE CONSIDERED WITH THE PUBLIC AND PRESS PRESENT
1. Apologies for Absence

2. Minutes of Previous meeting (Pages 3 - 8)

For requests for further information

Contact: Joel.Hammond-Gant

Tel: 01270 686468

E-Mail: joel.hammond-gant@cheshireeast.gov.uk with any apologies



mailto:joel.hammond-gant@cheshireeast.gov.uk
https://teams.microsoft.com/l/meetup-join/19%3ameeting_NGU2ZDBkMjQtMDJkOS00ZGM4LTlhNWItMjJhNTNmNDFhMmU3%40thread.v2/0?context=%7b%22Tid%22%3a%22cdb92d10-23cb-4ac1-a9b3-34f4faaa2851%22%2c%22Oid%22%3a%2207c51c22-e44f-49d2-ae04-dc504d30e340%22%2c%22IsBroadcastMeeting%22%3atrue%7d

To approve the minutes of the meeting held on 5 November 2020.
3. Declarations of Interest

To provide an opportunity for Members and Officers to declare any disclosable pecuniary and
non-pecuniary interests in any item on the agenda.

4. Declaration of Party Whip

To provide an opportunity for Members to declare the existence of a party whip in relation to
any item on the Agenda

5. Public Speaking Time/Open Session

A total period of 15 minutes is allocated for members of the public to make a statement(s) on
any matter that falls within the remit of the Committee.

Individual members of the public may speak for up to 5 minutes, but the Chairman will decide
how the period of time allocated for public speaking will be apportioned, where there are a
number of speakers.

Note: in order for officers to undertake and background research, it would be helpful if

members of the public notified the Scrutiny Officer listed at the foot of the Agenda at least one
working day before the meeting with brief details of the matter to be covered.

6. Covid-19 Update (Pages 9 - 16)

7. Gypsy, Roma and Traveller Community Welfare - We're Still Here (Pages 17 -
46)

8. Forward Plan (Pages 47 - 60)
9. Work Programme (Pages 61 - 70)
Membership: Councillors J Barber, S Brookfield, J Clowes, A Critchley, D Edwardes,

B Evans, S Gardiner, A Moran (Vice-Chairman), D Murphy, J Parry, P Redstone,
R Vernon, L Wardlaw (Chairman), J Weatherill and N Wylie



Page 3 Agenda Item 2

CHESHIRE EAST COUNCIL

Minutes of a meeting of the Health and Adult Social Care and
Communities Overview and Scrutiny Committee
held on Thursday, 5th November, 2020 at Virtual Meeting

PRESENT

Councillor L Wardlaw (Chairman)
Councillor A Moran (Vice-Chairman)

Councillors J Barber, S Brookfield, J Clowes, A Critchley, D Edwardes,
B Evans, S Gardiner, D Murphy, J Parry, P Redstone, R Vernon, J Weatherill
and N Wylie

PORTFOLIO HOLDERS IN ATTENDANCE

Councillor L Jeuda, Portfolio Holder for Adult Social Care and Health; Deputy
Leader of the Labour Group

Councillor J Rhodes, Portfolio Holder for Public Health and Corporate
Services

OFFICERS IN ATTENDANCE

Oliver Bennett, Chief Operating Officer (Mid Cheshire Hospitals NHS
Foundation Trust)***

Jill Broomhall, Director of Adult Social Care

Brian Green, Deputy Director of Nursing & Director of Infection, Prevention
and Control (East Cheshire NHS Trust)**

Madeleine Lowry, Associate Director (Cheshire and Wirral Partnership NHS
Foundation Trust)*

Sally Mann, Deputy Director of Nursing and Quality (Mid Cheshire Hospitals
NHS Foundation Trust)***

Mark Palethorpe, Executive Director of People

Anushta Sivananthan, Medical Director (Cheshire and Wirral Partnership NHS
Foundation Trust)*

Nichola Thompson, Director of Commissioning

Dr Matt Tyrer, Director of Public Health

* Attended for Minute No. 47
** Attended for Minute No. 48
*** Attended for Minute No. 49
41 APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE
There were no apologies for absence.

42 MINUTES OF PREVIOUS MEETING

RESOLVED -



43

44

45

46

47

Page 4

That the minutes of the previous meeting held on 8 October 2020 be
approved as a correct record and signed by the Chairman.

DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST

Councillor A Moran declared a non-pecuniary interest as a member of the
Mid Cheshire Hospitals NHS Foundation Trust.

DECLARATION OF PARTY WHIP

There were no declarations of a party whip.

PUBLIC SPEAKING TIME/OPEN SESSION

There were no members of the public present who wished to speak.
COVID-19 UPDATE

The committee agreed to bring this item forward on the agenda to be
taken as the first substantive item of business.

The Director of Public Health provided an update on the Covid-19
outbreak and the work undertaken by the council in response to the
pandemic. Members of the committee asked questions and put comments
in relation to;

e the most number and rate of cases in Cheshire East;

e how the statistics in Cheshire East compared to neighbouring
authorities and regions;

e what the latest guidance was regarding visitations to care homes,
and what work the council had undertaken to try and support safe
visitations where appropriate and possible; and

e how the council was ensuring that the Infection Control Grant was
being used to ensure that care home staff had been paid if they had
to stay off work to self-isolate.

RESOLVED -
That the update be noted.

CHESHIRE AND WIRRAL PARTNERSHIP NHS FOUNDATION TRUST -
QUALITY ACCOUNT 2019/20

Consideration was given to the 2019/20 Quality Account of Cheshire and
Wirral Partnership NHS Foundation Trust. Members asked questions and
put comments in relation to;

e the Trust's positive performance having been rated as Good and
Outstanding by Ofsted across the key assessed areas;



Page 5

what work it has undertaken as a Veterans Aware trust with local
ex-service and British Legion brances;

what areas had under-performed or not gone as well as had been
planned;

how the Covid-19 pandemic had impacted the Trust’s achievement
of its objectives from 2019/20;

how the Trust had supported the welfare and wellbeing of its staff
since the outbreak of the pandemic; and

what financial savings had been made by the Trust through it's
recent re-design of adult's and older peoples mental health
services.

RESOLVED -

1

That the Trust be thanked for attending and presenting its 2019/20
Quality Account report.

That the committee’s feedback and response to the 2019/20 Quality
Account for sent in the form of a letter.

That the Trust provide a response in writing to the question
regarding the financial savings that had been achieved by the Trust
through its re-design of adult's and older peoples mental health
services.

48 EAST CHESHIRE NHS TRUST - QUALITY ACCOUNT 2019/20

Consideration was given to the 2019/20 Quality Account of East Cheshire
NHS Trust. Members asked questions and put comments in relation to;

why the Trust had performed below the national average on being
responsive to the personal needs of inpatients;

whether the one specialist diabetes nurse was sufficient to provide
the necessary service across the Trust’s geographical area;

what measures it had put in place to support incoming patients who
have learning disabilities, delirium, or other conditions, who cannot
travel to the hospital with family, a carer, or a friend; and

how the Trust had supported the welfare and wellbeing of its staff
since the outbreak of the pandemic.

RESOLVED -

1

That the Trust be thanked for attending and presenting its 2019/20
Quality Account report.

That the committee’s feedback and response to the 2019/20 Quality
Account for sent in the form of a letter.

49 MID CHESHIRE HOSPITALS NHS FOUNDATION TRUST - QUALITY
ACCOUNT 2019/20



Page 6

Consideration was given to the 2019/20 Quality Account of Mid Cheshire
Hospitals NHS Foundation Trust. Members asked questions and put
comments in relation to;

e the Trust’s positive performance regarding staff recruitment through
its numerous international recruitment drives;

e how successful and smooth the integration of the Trust’s maternity
service with that of East Cheshire NHS Trust’s had been; and

e how the pandemic had affected the hospital’s bed capacity;

RESOLVED -

1 That the Trust be thanked for attending and presenting its 2019/20
Quality Account report.

2 That the committee’s feedback and response to the 2019/20 Quality
Account for sent in the form of a letter.

50 ADULT SOCIAL CARE WINTER PLAN 2020/21

51

Consideration was given to a report highlighting the council’s plans and
measures put in place locally for the upcoming winter period.

Members asked questions and put comments in relation to;

e the local flu vaccination programme;
e the policy regarding patients’ safe discharge from care homes
¢ the support identified for unpaid carers; and
¢ what support mechanisms had been put in place to ensure adult
social care staff were supported throughout the pandemic.
RESOLVED -

That the report be noted.

DELIVERY OF RECOMMISSIONED INTEGERATED LIFESTYLE
SERVICES

The committee received an update on the performance of the contract for
the One You Cheshire East integrated lifestyle, which commenced in
November 2019.

It was noted that the outbreak of the Covid-19 pandemic had significantly
impacted the delivery of services against this contract. Members asked
how many other contracts the council had in place that had been similarly
affected, and what measures were in place to review and manage contract
performance accordingly.

RESOLVED -



52

53

Page 7

That the update be received and noted.
FORWARD PLAN

The committee reviewed the council’s Forward Plan of key decisions. The
Chairman provided some feedback and comments regarding the Social
Value Policy paper, to be considered by Cabinet on 10 November 2020,
which would be collated with the wider comments of committee members
and forwarded to the responsible Portfolio Holder in advance of the
Cabinet meeting.

RESOLVED -
1 That the Forward Plan be noted

2 That the comments in relation to the Social Value Policy paper be
collated and submitted to the responsible Portfolio Holder in
advance of the Cabinet meeting on 10 November 2020.

WORK PROGRAMME

The committee carried out a review of its work programme and planned
items of business. Members enquired as to whether the next update from
health partners (due on 14 January 2021) could be brought forward to the
committee’s next meeting on 3 December 2020.

RESOLVED -
1 That the work programme be agreed.
2 That the Scrutiny Officer liaise with health partners to ascertain

whether the update on the Sustainability of Health Services in
Cheshire East could be brought forward to the next committee
meeting on 3 December 2020.

The meeting commenced at 10.00 am and concluded at 1.07 pm

Councillor L Wardlaw (Chairman)



This page is intentionally left blank



Page 9 Agenda Item 6

0

Cheshire Eﬁ

t
Council¥d

Working for a brighter futuret together

Health and Adults Social Care and Communities Overview and
Scrutiny Committee

Date of Meeting: 3" December 2020

Report Title: Adult Social Care COVID-19 Update
Portfolio Holder: Clir. Laura Jeuda - Adult Social Care and Health

Senior Officer: Mark Palethorpe - Executive Director of People

1. Report Summary

1.1. At the time of writing the rate of new infection across Cheshire East has
remained stable for the past few weeks with Cheshire and Merseyside and
the North West showing an overall fall in the rate of new cases. Lockdown
restrictions remain in place nationally.

1.2. This update summarises the current situation in relation to COVID-19 in care
homes, care at home, and complex care in Cheshire East. It also
summarises measures which have already been put in place and actions
which will be taken to minimise risk of COVID-19 transmission in Adult Social
Care settings.

2. Recommendations
2.1. The committee is asked to:
2.1.1. Note the actions undertaken.

2.1.2. Review and scrutinise plans to continue to support care provision in
Cheshire East due to the Covid-19 pandemic.

3. Reasons for Recommendations

3.1.To ensure that the Council has robust contract management, and quality
assurance process in place to minimise risk of COVID-19 transmission in
Adult Social Care settings.

OFFICIAL



Page 10

4. Other Options Considered

4.1. The Council has a statutory duty to manage the Care Market, to ensure that
our residents are safeguarded, and also has contractual responsibilities
directly with a number of carer providers across Cheshire East. Therefore it
is not an option to do nothing.

5. Update on Settings
5.1. Accommodation with Care

5.1.1. Current situation

e At the time of writing: 18 care homes are currently experiencing a COVID-
19 outbreak, an outbreak is defined as 2 or more linked cases amongst
staff and residents.

e Of these, 7 homes have completed the 14-day isolation period, and 7
homes currently have no confirmed cases among residents.

5.2.Care at Home

5.2.1. Current situation

e At the time of writing suspected and confirmed COVID-19 cases amongst
staff and service users have remained relatively low. Currently there are
13 confirmed cases among service users and 19 amongst staff.

e Care at Home providers are generally operating effectively. One or two
providers have experienced issues over staffing levels particularly due to
unplanned school closures, however, the Contract Management team has
worked closely with these providers to resolve these issues as they arise.

5.3.Complex Care

5.3.1. Current situation

e At the time of writing, within complex care settings we are aware of 1
confirmed case amongst service users and 2 confirmed cases amongst
staff. We also have one staff member self-isolating due to contact with a
Covid positive relative.

6. Background
6.1. Accommodation with Care
6.1.1. Measures currently in place

e The Whole Home Testing Programme in which staff are tested weekly,
and residents are tested every 4 weeks, continues and is generally

OFFICIAL



Page 11

working well. The programme has helped to identify asymptomatic staff
members at an early stage so that they are able to self-isolate and prevent
the spread of the virus to residents and other staff members. Due to the
current demand on the Laboratory service a small proportion of homes
have reported a delay in test result being returned. Local monitoring
remains in place via the Infection Control Team on this matter.

Planning is underway with the Council’s Public Health Team to explore the
possibility of a Lateral Flow Testing pilot to support Care Homes. Lateral
Flow Tests allow a quick turnaround of results (within 20-30 minutes) and
if implemented correctly and with the normal precautions around PPE and
social distancing, may support safe visiting within care homes.

Cheshire East received the first tranche of funding from Round 2 of the
Infection Control fund on 2nd October 2020 equating to £2.356 million. Of
this £1.567 million has been passported directly to care homes to support
with the Infection Control measures specified in Government guidance.
These measures are designed to limit staff movement within the home,
support safe visiting among other workforce resilience and infection control
measures.

All care homes have an Infection Prevention Control Outbreak Plan
supported by an Outbreak Management Toolkit issued by the Council.
These can be quickly stepped up in the event of an outbreak and
appropriate support put in place from the Infection Prevention and Control
service and the Council’'s Quality Assurance team.

Officers are also working with care providers to ensure that their staff and
care home residents can access flu vaccinations to ensure that there is
resilience in the care workforce.

Monthly care home webinars have been set up in partnership with
Cheshire CCG for care home providers with themed agendas such as
winter planning, infection control, digital services etc. The next webinar is
taking place on Thursday 26" November 2020 and has a focus on
Infection Prevention Control, Flu Outbreak common themes and trends,
Visiting advice, and Counselling and Bereavement Support for Care Home
staff.

Weekly mutual aid calls continue for Accommodation with Care providers.
These calls provide an opportunity for care home managers to share good
practice and offer mutual support.

OFFICIAL



Page 12

74 Care Homes have been allocated a free iPad via NHSE. The benefits
iPad continue to enable residents to stay in touch with their loved ones
and facilitate GP consultations.

A Multi-Disciplinary Team has been established to design a relatives
visiting strategy for Care Homes across Cheshire East that complements
the existing Department of Health and Social Care guidance. The purpose
of the strategy is to offer guidance and support to homes around
facilitating creative visiting options for family members in a safe way. The
strategy will offer comprehensive guidance, advice and support to Care
Homes that can be used to support their Dynamic Risk Assessment
processes. Once the strategy is finalised it will be agreed by Cheshire East
Councils Director of Public Health and monitored locally via Infection
Prevention Control and the Councils Quality Assurance Team.

The Care Home COVID-19 vaccination delivery plan has been completed,
verified and submitted to Cheshire CCG.

Infection Prevention and Control (IPC) visits continue to be made by IPC
nurses to care homes that have experienced more serious outbreaks.
These calls provide vital support and advice to homes and are well
received.

Market position/sustainability reviews continue to be undertaken on a
monthly basis by way of a multi-disciplinary preparedness call on a
fortnightly basis.

The Quality Assurance Team continue to undertake weekly contact calls to
all care homes across the Borough. The purpose of this contact call is to
seek assurance of the effective ongoing safe service delivery and address
any emerging risk.

Analysis of COVID-19 outbreak data has been undertaken to identify
trends or patterns in the types of homes in which outbreaks occur. This
information will be used to target additional support to prevent future
outbreaks.

A two-tiered approach has been introduced for Quality Assurance; care
homes will be sent a list of trigger questions, and a desktop review will be
used to determine which homes are at higher risk of quality issues and
therefore require a face-to-face Quality Assurance visit, and which homes
can continue to be monitored virtually.

Care homes continue to be asked how they are communicating with
friends and family of their residents, and whether any support is needed to

OFFICIAL



Page 13

improve this, to help ensure that friends and family adhere to visiting
guidance. Recommendations from this are being taken forward in
partnership with the Councils Public Health Team.

6.1.2. Actions to be taken

The Council continues to work with CCG colleagues to identify designated
settings which are capable of supporting Covid 19 hospital patients who
are medically for discharge but require support to enable them to fully
recover. This is proving difficult as these settings must be able to isolate
patients from any other residents to prevent any risk of onward
transmission of the virus and meet the required Care Quality Commission,
Infection Prevention Control Regulations.

Officers will continue to monitor the implementation of the antibody testing
from the Department of Health and Social Care across selected care
homes in the Borough.

Ongoing work has been taking place locally with CCG colleagues in
relation to seasonal flu vaccination for both Care Homes residents and
staff along with the wider provider market. Officers will work with home
and care provider managers to identify a Flu Champion in their
organisations who will highlight the immunisation programme and
encourage colleagues to get their flu jab. The Flu Champion will work
alongside their local GP practice to arrange vaccination through district
nurse or community pharmacy support.

6.2.Care at Home

6.2.1. Actions taken to support Providers

The CLIPPER system continues to help providers source PPE and there
continues to be positive feedback on the system. CEC continue to support
providers with PPE where providers are approaching critical need.

Professor Rod Thomson from our Public Health Team attended a mutual
aid call as a guest speaker and answered providers’ questions about
COVID-19. The main questions asked related to PPE and testing.
Providers gave very positive feedback on this session.

Infection Prevention and Control training has been rolled out to all
domiciliary care providers. Training was delivered over MS Teams by a
nurse from Cheshire CCG, and attendees demonstrated donning and

OFFICIAL



Page 14

doffing (taking on and off) of PPE to check they were doing it correctly.
Thirty-six Cheshire East providers were trained in total, and those who
attended gave positive feedback.

e £672k has been distributed to community care providers with a registered
office in Cheshire East from the second round of the Government's
Infection Control Fund for specified Infection Control and workforce
resilience measures.

6.3.Complex Care
6.3.1. Actions taken to support providers

Cheshire East Council is part of a pilot scheme to roll out COVID-19
testing for Supported Living settings and Extra Care Housing
schemes, similar to the Whole Care Home Testing Programme.

The ‘outbreaks preparedness toolkit’ for care homes has been rolled
out to Complex Care settings. It will contain information and advice on
what steps these settings can take to reduce the risk of outbreaks of
COVID-19 and seasonal infectious illnesses and minimise the impact if
outbreaks do occur.

Providers are being supported with PPE, as described above for
Accommodation with Care and Care at Home.

Complex and Extra Care Housing care providers with registered offices
in Cheshire East have now received a share of the Government’s
Infection Control Fund.

7. Implications of the Recommendations
7.1. Legal Implications

e Local Authorities have a duty under the Care Act 2014 to ensure we meet our
statutory obligations.

e The Council effectively manages contracts to ensure that value for money is
provided, and that the person continues to receive quality of care in
accordance with the Provider’s contractual obligations.

e The Council has a statutory Safeguarding role which it must fulfil diligently and
in accordance with statutory requirements.

7.2.Finance Implications

OFFICIAL



7.3.

7.4.

7.5.

7.6.

7.7.

7.8.

7.9.

Page 15

The sector has reported they are facing challenges due primarily low
occupancy and increased costs relating to PPE. Close monitoring of business
viability remains in place.

Policy Implications

This proposal is in keeping with the requirements of the Care Act 2014 and
does not have any specific policy implications

Equality Implications

The focus has been on ensuring that service users and carers continue to be
able to access information, advice, and be able to continue visiting family
members placed within Care Homes and Complex Care settings. Care
providers have made extensive use of new technologies to ensure
communication between family members and relatives.

Human Resources Implications

There are no known direct Human Resource implications for the Council
arising from this report at this time. Depending on the staffing requirements of
the designated settings there may be a need to redeploy Care4CE staff to
support these schemes.

Risk Management Implications

The continuing Covid-19 pandemic and with the risk of a second wave or
spike in COVID19 combined with winter pressures could place significant
pressures on the Social Care market. Detailed planning is taking place with
CCG colleagues and with social care providers to plan for the coming months
and mitigate risks.

Rural Communities Implications

There are no direct Rural Communities implications arising from this report.

Implications for Children & Young People/Cared for Children

There are no implication arising from this report to note in relation to Children
& Young People.

Public Health Implications
COVID19 has had profound impacts on many people who use services and

their carers. It will be important to understand and support Adult Social Care

OFFICIAL



Page 16

service users and carers with any long-term impacts in terms of both Mental
and Physical Health and Wellbeing.
8

. 8.1. Climate Change Implications

The Council is currently reviewing policy developments for Social Value in
response to Covid-19 recovery planning. This includes local Social,
Economic and Environmental impacts

9. Ward Members Affected
9.1. All wards are affected
10.Consultation & Engagement

e Ongoing engagement continues a regular basis with providers across the
Borough. The main methods of communication are via the provider mutual aid
calls, themed Webinars and weekly contact calls via the Quality Assurance
team. In addition to this engagement direct support is provided from the local
Infection Prevention Control service and CCG teams.

11.Access to Information
N/A
12.Contact Information

12.1. Any questions relating to this report should be directed to the following
officer:

Name: Nichola Thompson
Job Title: Director of Commissioning

Email: Nichola.thompson@cheshireeast.qgov.uk

OFFICIAL


mailto:Nichola.thompson@cheshireeast.gov.uk

Page 17 Agenda Item 7

<N
o)

.-;-.:;,\
Cheshire East )/
Council?

Working for a brighter future® together

Version
Number: 1.0

BRIEFING REPORT - Health and Adult Social Care and
Communities Overview and Scrutiny Committee

Date of Meeting: 03 December 2020

Report Title: Gypsy and Traveller Report: We're Still Here

Portfolio Holder:

Author: Dawn Taylor: Cheshire and Warrington Traveller Team Manager

Senior Officer: <Jill Broomhall: Director of Adult Social Care>

1. Introduction and Policy Context

1.1. The ‘We're Still Here’ (launched in April 2020 amid the pandemic) report is a
follow up research to ‘Here to Stay’, research, completed in 2006, into the
needs and preferences of the Gypsy/Traveller communities in Cheshire,
Halton and Warrington.

1.2. The research from the report will be used to help formulate future policies
and services, particularly the Joint Strategic Needs Assessment (JSNA).
Health and Wellbeing boards have a duty to produce a JSNA, identifying both
health and social care needs, how they are met and opportunities for
improvement. The first report in 2006, has been used by previous JSNA’s
as the only local evidence base around Gypsy/Traveller communities within
Cheshire. Informing service providers of the needs of Gypsy/Traveller
communities. It was however outdated and in need of updating. The purpose
of this briefing is to provide an overview of the content of the report and the
key findings.

2. Background

21. In 2006, Cheshire, Halton & Warrington Race and Equality Centre
(CHAWREC) commissioned a piece of research to establish an evidence

OFFICIAL
1



2.2.

2.3.

2.4.

Page 18

base to demonstrate the need for and aid the development of a
Gypsy/Travellers network across Cheshire. The research was innovative
and participative, engaging people from the Gypsy/Traveller communities
from the start. The work was co-designed, co-conducted, co-produced and
co-presented. The result was the ‘Here To Stay: An Exploratory Study into
the Needs and Preferences of Gypsy/Traveller communities in Cheshire,
Halton & Warrington.’

Through the Cheshire Strategic Partnership, it was agreed to fund an
updated research project, in partnership with  CHAWREC and Irish
Community Care. All the Cheshire authorities, through their Public Health
departments, Cheshire Police and contributions from the John Moores
Foundation and the Big Lottery funded the research.

‘We're Still Here’ began gathering information through a consultation process
with Gypsy and Travellers in February 2018. Data was collected over a 10-
month period September 2018 to July 2019. The guiding principle of the
research was to fully engage with the communities by employing members
of those communities. A consultant was commissioned to train the
community-based researchers to design and conduct the research into the
needs of their communities.

There was a hope/expectation that the data could be compared to the
previous research.

3. Briefing Information

3.1.

3.2.

3.3.

The principles and methodology used in the first research were highly
successful and were duplicated in the second project; engaging community
members to carry out the research, enabling community members to be
involved at every stage, encouraging ownership and empowering the
communities.

The research initially struggled to attract community researches and those
willing to complete the research, for a variety of reasons;

e Lack of trust in sharing personal information even with other
community members

o The impact of death, grief, illness and the increase in suicides within
the communities. One suicide impacting on 97 adults and nearly 200
children in the Cheshire subregion.

Originally it was hoped that the same people who had been interviewed in

the 2006 research could be interviewed again. This was not possible as
many had died, moved on and or no longer wanted to be involved. The

OFFICIAL



Page 19

interviews were carried out on both private and public sites, encampments,
housing and special events put on to engage the communities. The sample
was made up of;

125 people: 46 men and 79 women

Aged between 16 and 83

Across all four Cheshire authorities (46% from Cheshire West area)
A good mix of domicile type, ethnicity and belief

3.4. This time the questionnaire contained topics that previously were taboo in
the communities, these covered issues around;

Domestic abuse

Family breakdown
Alcohol and drug misuse
Suicide

3.5. The biggest changes in the recent research were;

Lower levels of literacy were found in the second report

Ethnic mix had changed with 61% being Travellers this time round
(14% in 2006)

An increase of 30% in those experiencing unfair treatment compared
to 2006. Also, an increase of 40% in those experiencing abuse in
2018.

20% increase in those still travelling compared with 2006.

3.6. The research suggests a series of 13 recommendations which cover a
variety of issues and | have put them under 3 headings;

Training: empowering members of the communities to deliver training
for example to, mental health teams, GPs and health workers, so they
have a better understanding of the culture. In a hope this will influence
how services are set up and give more targeted help that the
communities would accept. This would give recognition of the
strengths of the Gypsy/Traveller communities, as well as positive
community empowerment and inclusion; ‘nothing about us, without
us!’ It was also suggested that another good medium would be short
films with real people talking about their experiences, as this would be
particularly hard hitting.

Hate Crime/discrimination: a dedicated hotline for reporting for the
Gypsy/Traveller communities — there is already one nationally, but the
northwest is not linked in — Report Racism GRT. Looking at how social
media has been used to bully and propagate racial hatred, for
example local face book pages used when an unauthorised

OFFICIAL
3



Page 20

development or encampment is set up. Gypsies and Travellers feel
unsupported and that no one cares about what is happening to them.
This causes great mental distress to the communities and we need to
look at how to build resilience. Within this we need community
cohesion work, services and local communities receiving appropriate
training and anti-discriminatory messages clearly publicised
throughout Cheshire.

e Trust: a very important commodity with any community and it is clear
from the research that the work of Irish Community Care carries out
is built on trust with the communities. The service (only in Cheshire
West currently) needs to be sustained and expanded to cover the
whole of Cheshire. It is important austerity does not negatively affect
the communities further. Many need mainstream services but there
is a lack of trusted navigators. This needs to be repaired, we need to
engage the communities through events, consultations and projects
that interest them.

4. Implications

41.

4.2,

The research has captured some new information about the Gypsy/Traveller
communities currently residing in Cheshire and will greatly help any future
JSNA and new service development. These communities are often referred
to as ‘hard to reach’ We're Still Here proves this wrong, its more about who
is asking and trusted relationships.

The only financial implication will be if the council move forward with plans to
contract a support service from Irish Community Care.

OFFICIAL



Page 21

®_0® CHAWREC

‘ CHESHIRE, HALTON & WARRINGTON
RACE & EQUALITY CENTRE

We’re Still Here

A follow up study to ‘Here

to Stay’, research into the

needs and preferences of
Gypsy/Traveller communities
in Cheshire, Halton and
Warrington

Report compiled by
Dr Corinne Thomason

Report commissioned by

Cheshire, Halton & Warrington Race & Equality Centre
and Irish Community Care

IRISH COMMUNITY CARE



CONTENTS

FOREWORD

INTRODUCTION
Study context
National context

Local context

THE RESEARCH
The design
Points of comparison

Reflections on the sample

EVALUATING THE PROCESS AND
COMPARING THE SAMPLES

Evaluation of the design
Assessing interview quality

Comparing the samples

WHO ARE THE INTERVIEWEES?
Age and gender

Ethnicity

Faith

WHERE DO PEOPLE LIVE?
Location

Domicile type

Permanence

Who do people live with?

Satisfaction with living location

WHAT DO PEOPLE DO FOR A LIVING?
Employment
Do you have a NINO?

Benefit income

HEALTH AND WELFARE
Registration with GPs and Dentists
Service use

Health conditions

Mental health self assessment

15

EDUCATION
Current involvement with education

Former involvement in education

SENSE OF BELONGING
AND INVOLVEMENT

Involvement in G&T communities

Involvement in mainstream community

SATISFACTION WITH SERVICES
Satisfaction

Dissatisfaction

Ambivalence

Uncertainty about

CONCERN ABOUT
COMMUNITY ISSUES

DISCRIMINATION

Unfair treatment

The impact of unfair treatment
Experience of abuse or attack
Response to discrimination
Reporting

Stop and search

COMPARING THE 2006
AND 2019 RESULTS

What'’s similar?
What’s different?
What’s new in 2019?

DISCUSSION

RECOMMENDATIONS

REFERENCES

TABLES

Page 22

FOREWORD

This report was due to be launched in April 2020 but w:
‘e have decided that rather than wait for a physical launch, which may be many months

pandemic.

away, we will launch virtually

delayed because of the coronavirus

ith a follow up workshop later in the year. However, it would remiss of

us not to include information that we have received during this pandemic from Gypsy and Traveller
communities. It has been widely reported that BAME communities are being disproportionately
impacted by the virus, and we have anecdotal evidence that this reaches in

communities to
about the mortality rate. There are also wo

/e are told that sites are becoming hot sp

and concerns have been e:

es about the financial impact, with literacy rates

being low and high levels of self employment making Gypsy and Traveller communities even more

vulnerable. Unfortuna e did not have the time or resources to follow this up for the launch of this

report, but we would urge that further
and Traveller communities as a s rate group.

Fourteen years ago we launched the first ever research
completed in Cheshire looking at the needs of Gypsies
and Travellers - Here to Stay. It was the obvious next
step as there had been a number of high profile

racist incidents aimed at Gypsies and Travellers and
there remained serious concerns about the lack of
accommodation and the ongoing divisions between
them and the wider settled community. At the time half
of our casework load was from Gypsies and Travellers
and we saw first hand the level of discrimination faced
by these communities.

The research started out as a method to ask Gypsy

and Traveller communities about development of a
network that would advocate and support them. It was
about what they wanted from a network, but we soon
realised that it was an unmissable opportunity to ask a
whole host of other questions that would give agencies
a better understanding of what thei
do differently to support Gypsies and Travellers. The
research was met very positively and has continued to
be used up until today as the only reliable data.

rvices could

Both ourselves and Irish Community Care were keen to
see the data be brought up to date and so we began
our search for funding to support a second research
report, but this time working in partnership. | would
like to thank both Win Lawlor at Irish Community Care
and Dawn Taylor, Traveller Team Manager for being the
driving forces behind securing funding to make this a
reality. Their enthusiasm, commitment and drive are
the key reasons we can present this report today. We
were also delighted that we secured Diverse Solutions,
the original research company to undertake the refresh.
Corinne’s previous experience, combined with her

Shantele Sutherland

sarch is undertaken into the impact of Covid 19 on Gypsy

empathy and understanding of the community barriers
were crucial to the success of the work.

Doing it a second time around we suspected would

be different; we are all operating in a very different
environment with fewer resources. CHAWREC's

links with the Gypsy Traveller communities had been
much diminished as a consequence and we saw

this as an opportunity to re-engage and reassure
communities that we are still here for them. Having
Irish Community Care on board was a key part in

the success of the research this time around, and
especially the involvement of Maya Stoddart, who put a
significant amount of time and energy into encouraging
participation.

Having been involved in both sets of research it has
been very interesting to see the difference. | noticed
more division within the Traveller community itself,

but also an increased openness about some of the
issues we struggled to discuss previously. | heard

some heartbreakin: rom individuals, and it

is very clear that in some ways although there has

been progress, there is still so much more to be done.
Gypsies and Travellers still face discrimination daily. So |
would urge you to take away this report and make sure
everyone in your workplace is aware of it - consider
how you can make things better for Gypsy and Traveller
communities and take action. Finally, | would like to

say a huge thank you to the community researchers
without whom we would never have secured so many
interviews, and the individuals themselves who gave
their time and confided their experiences to us; we
trust that hearing their voices will make a difference.

DIRECTOR | CHESHIRE, HALTON & WARRINGTON RACE & EQUALITY CENTRE




1 INTRODUCTION

1.1 Study context

In 2006, Cheshire, Halton & Warrington Race &
Equality Centre commissioned a piece of research
to provide an evidence base to demonstrate the
need for and aid the development of a Gypsy/
Traveller Network across Cheshire. The work

was funded by ‘Change Up.' ' The research was
innovative and participative engaging people from
Gypsy and Traveller communities from the start so
that the work was co designed, co conducted, co
produced and co presented.

The research was published by CHAWREC: ‘Here
to Stay: An Exploratory Study into the Needs
and Preferences of Gypsy/Traveller Communities
in Cheshire, Halton & Warrington’ and to date
contains the only comprehensive information on
Gypsy/ Traveller communities in the Cheshire,
Halton & Warrington areas. Thirteen years on the
2006 report is still being used to inform service
providers of the needs of Gypsies and Travellers. It
is, however, out of date.

1.2 National Context

The most recent evidence about the life chances
of these communities suggests that they are still
disadvantaged across a spectrum of life needs. A
recent House of Commons briefing paper points
to the continuing inequalities faced by Gypsies
and Travellers in the UK. (Cromarty:2017) It

argues that they experience some of the worst
outcomes of any group across a wide range of
social indicators and that their life chances have
declined since an earlier review in 2010. They cite
specifically the findings of the Equality and Human
Rights Commission (EHRC:2010 and 2015) and the
Ministerial Group tasked with reducing and tackling
these inequalities: 2012 and 2014.)

The EHRC argues that a number of factors may
be contributing to growing inequality: deprivation,
social invisibility, stigma and stereotyping but on
a positive note argue that greater evidence on the
experiences of these groups will help to diagnose
and address these inequalities (EHRC webpage
quoted in Cromarty 2017:16).

7 A National Infrastructure Programme

1.3 Local context

Locally, Irish Community Care (ICC) with researchers
from Praxis undertook an in-depth analysis of 12
individuals over 4 days, through the winter of 2014-
15, highlighting again significant issues relating to
health, discrimination and access to services in the
Ellesmere Port area of West Cheshire (ICC:2016)

In addition local community agencies have given
evidence to the Ministerial Group about progress
towards the 28 commitments made by the
Government. These contributions provide valuable
‘on the ground’ evidence about the impact of
policy change on peoples’ lives and can highlight
improvements and sometimes detrimental impacts
on the lives of these communities (Lawlor: 2017)

The recent Women and Equalities Committee
Report (House of Commons: 2019 ) and also the
New National Strategy to tackle inequalities in the
communities (Gov UK: 2019 ) also acknowledge
that these communities face the worst outcomes
of any ethnic group and that those outcomes are
worsening.

We recognise that members of Gypsy,
Roma and Traveller communities
continue to face some of the steepest
challenges in society...

Health, education and housing
inequalities are considerable, and we
know that there are disproportionate
levels of violence experienced by some
women and girls.

COMMUNITIES MINISTER LORD BOURNE | 2019

Collating updated evidence about the needs,
preferences and experiences of these communities
lies at the heart of this research and multiple
agencies across Cheshire, Warrington and Halton
are therefore keen to inform their service delivery
with updated knowledge about the communities
and the lives of individuals within it. These
agencies are therefore funding ‘Here to Stay 2. 2

2 John Moores Foundation, Cheshire Constabulary, Cheshire West & Chester Council, Public Health - Cheshire West & Chester, Cheshire

East, Halton & Warrington and contribution in time from Big Lottery funded project

4

Page 23

2 THE RESEARCH

2.1 The Design

A guiding principle of the 2006 research was

to fully engage the community by employing
community-based participative researchers.
Gypsies and Travellers can be very suspicious
of outsiders unknown to them, particularly
when being asked personal information about
health, benefits, housing and other key issues. A
Consultant was commissioned to train members
of the Gypsy and Traveller communities to design
and conduct research into the needs of their
communities. The process was eased by the
input of a well known Gypsy trainer and by the
involvement of Community Leaders.

The 2006 project:-

Up-skilled members of the Gypsy and Traveller
communities to become community researchers
devising and conducting participatory research
in their own communities.

Developed a piece of community participative
research which gathered data about the needs
of G&T communities and the ways in which they
interact with public services and public services
interact with them.

Enabled G&T communities to be involved at
every stage with the project to encourage
ownership and to empower communities.

Applied the principles of community
participative research to move towards
evidence-based culturally sensitive and
appropriate services.

This methodology was highly successful and
therefore we planned to proceed in this same vein,
training a small cohort of people from Gypsy and
Traveller communities to design and administer
questionnaires to members of their communities. Co
researchers and interviewees would be recompensed
for securing interviews and for their time. The design
was informed by the belief that research trained
community members were better placed to gain
information about their community than researchers
from the non Gypsy and Traveller world.

This time, however, we struggled to attract
community researchers even with the help of well
trusted Irish Community Care staff and four well
advertised consultation days. Indeed it became
clear that concerns about privacy also now apply
to other members of the Gypsy and Traveller
communities - a finding in itself.

®_® CHAWREC

This major hurdle slowed the work down
considerably. In addition work was delayed by a
number of events which impacted the communities
we were researching and made it inappropriate

for us to continue work. Finally, death, grief,

illness, work load, the extended nature of the

work and other pressures affecting co-researchers
themselves have caused some delay.

In the event, the data has been collected by four
community researchers, an Advice, Advocacy

and Support Worker from ICC; two Gypsy and
Traveller advocates and the Lead Researcher
herself. In terms of profile there were two male and
five female researchers. Their ages ranged from
mid twenties to early sixties. The data has been
collected by visiting people’s homes and meeting
interviewees at the weekly drop in service hosted
by Irish Community Care and held in the Ellesmere
Port Council building. The consultation phase
lasted 8 months from February 2018 and the data
was collected over a 10 month period (September
2018 - July 2019).

An unexpected outcome of the delays and
difficulties documented above and the resultant
changes to the data collection strategy has been a
deeper appreciation of the prevalence and impact
of the issues mentioned above and the racism the
community experience first - hand from site visits
and researcher presence in drop - in services. In
the 2006 research the Lead Researcher operated
in a more distanced way offering research
methods training, support and guidance to the

co researchers but being less involved in the

day to day lives of the communities. This added
dimension has offered increased insight into the
lives of what are still little understood communities
and is, on balance, an asset for the collection,
analysis and interpretation of the data.

2.2 Points of comparison

Just as the work to engage the communities
commenced, both the wider Gypsy and Traveller
communities and local members experienced

an increase in suicides and traumatic death. This
impacted the whole of the research period and
opportunities to engage. During the 12 month
time frame of the research all ICC service users in
Ellesmere Port were affected by suicide. In total
this involved 97 adults and nearly 200 children.
Also in routine mental health monitoring of people
involved with ICC services in 2018, ICC’s data
identified increases in PHQ2 to all Service Users,



2 THE RESEARCH

with low level concerns for monitoring mental
health with all 43 adults and 88 children seen over
that quarter.

When this work was commissioned it was hoped
that it would embrace, where possible, the unique
opportunity offered by the earlier work to revisit
the same people who were interviewed 13 years
previously to see how things had changed in their
lives and bring the research up to date.

In the event, the work cannot be comparative

in the sense of interviewing the same people

as most have died, moved on or were unwilling

to participate. However there are comparative
elements such as family connections and some

of the same locations. Interviewees have also
reflected on their changing communities. Wherever
possible these softer reflections and comparisons
have been reflected in the work.

‘We planned to undertake some comparative work
on a sub sample in an area where the population
had remained quite static but sadly the Community
Leader linked to this stable community became

ill and died which made it inappropriate for us to
continue this work.

There are some other points of comparison
however. The questionnaire has been designed
to incorporate many of the same questions. In
addition, and in response to changes in society
and issues raised by community members in our
consultation events we have
included some sensitive issues
which we were advised not to
broach 13 years ago.

3 All tables can be found at the end of the report

6

Page 24

We also planned to address some of the gaps in
the 2006 sample; these being the lack of younger
men, the small number of highly mobile Travellers
and to increase the number of Irish Travellers
through Irish Community Care’s involvement.

2.3 Reflections on the Sample
On a positive note, the final sample is a strong one.

We interviewed 125 people: 46 men and 79 women.

The interviewees range in age from 16 to 83. Of
particular note and value is the increased number
of young men in our sample. Men under the age of
40 comprise one fifth of the sample which was a
dimension missing from the work in 2006. (Tables
3-5).%

We also have a good spread of interviewees

from across Cheshire, Halton and Warrington and
across domicile type, ethnicity and belief. Most
importantly, through the consultation process,

we have been able to include questions about
changing society which we had previously been
advised by the researchers would be considered
taboo in Gypsy and Traveller communities; subjects
such as domestic violence, family breakdown,
alcohol and drug abuse and suicide. The
community were integral in the design and framing
of the questions, and the majority of interviewees
have been happy to talk about these issues and
additional issues affecting their communities, which
is a very important outcome for this research.

3 EVALUATING THE PROCESS

AND COMPARING THE SAMPLES

3.1 Evaluation of the design

In terms of sampling there is very little statistical
information available relating to Gypsies and
Travellers in the Cheshire area, primarily because
the local data often does not include Gypsy or
Travellers as ethnic classifications. However, it

is widely accepted that the Gypsy and Traveller
population is the largest of all minority groups.
There are currently 299 authorised pitches and
using the ODPM average of 4.5 people per pitch
this would suggest on sites alone that there are
in the vicinity of 1345 people, plus more residing
in bricks and mortar accommodation. There

is the additional problem of gaining access to
participants.

‘We continuously reviewed the sample to look

for an even spread across gender, age, location,
domicile type, faith and ethnicity and made
adjustments to target characteristics and
community profiles if they were absent. We
positively targeted young men and Irish Travellers
for example as they were not well represented in
the earlier research.

3.2 Assessing interview quality
Researchers were asked to evaluate the interviews
they had conducted by rating them on a scale

of 1-10, 10 being the best it could be. This rating
had to be done within an hour of the interview
taking place. Table 1 documents the frequency
with which different points on the scale were
selected 92 of the interviews were rated 5 or above
which suggests that researchers considered most
interviews went relatively well.

Researchers were also asked to consider two
statements about each interview to gauge the level
of participation of interviewees. Almost two -thirds
of interviewees were assessed as fully engaging in
the interview process. (Table 2)

3.3 Comparing the samples

Figures 1-8 and the comparison matrix in Table 46
clearly demonstrate how the 2019 sample differs
from the 2006 sample. To begin with some points
of similarity. There are still more women in the
sample than men although that imbalance has
been addressed a little.

o:o CHAWREC

Figure1 Gender 2006

Figure 2 Gender 2019

Figure 3 Compare sample under 40
2006/2019

Percentage under 40

80%

60%

40%

20%

0%

2006

2019

W Under 40
M Over 40



3 EVALUATING THE PROCESS AND COMPARING THE SAMPLES

The biggest change in the characteristics of the
sample is the ethnic mix. In 2006 the sample

was light on Travellers. The involvement of Irish
Community Care as a partner in this work has
assisted the recruitment of Irish Travellers and as a
result the proportions have reversed and Travellers
account for 61% of the 2019 sample. The different
cultural norms of Travellers and Gypsies are likely
to impact on the outcome of this work particularly
with regard to mobility, and the make-up of

local Gypsy and Traveller accommodation is also
significant.

Figure 4 Compare Ethnicity in
2006/2019

Ethnicity
80%

60%
40% I I
20% I
| H I

All Travellers All Gypsies Other/No Response

M 2006 M 2019

Figure 5 Compare faith in 2006/2019
Faith
Moo M 2006
No Response | M2%
Other | B

ctian | ——
Christian e

Catholic: | | 46%

The housing location types are in similar
proportions with more respondents living on sites.
We have interviewed roughly the same proportions
of people from Cheshire East and West, although
the Widnes sample was reduced as a result of the
death of a Community Leader there.

Figure 6 Compare Local Authority area
in 2006/2019

Local Authority Area

M 2006 M 2019
%% a7
8%

o 0%

I % l % m

Cheshire  Cheshire Halton Warrington Halton & Other
East

West &
Chester

[Note that the 2006 sample showed a collective
figure for Halton and Warrington]

Figure 7 Compare domicile location
in 2006/2019

Domicile Location Type

W 2006 W 2019

64%
53%
32%
23%
I T

House Caravan Other

Figure 8 Compare domicile type
in 2006/2019
Domicile Type

M 2006 M 2019

64%
53%
32%
23%
I T

House Caravan Other

Page 25

4 WHO ARE THE INTERVIEWEES?

4.1 Age and gender
One hundred and twenty-five people were
interviewed. Tables 3-5 show the age and gender
profile of the respondents. There were almost
twice as many women as men. As Tables 4 and 5
reveal the sample is young overall with 58% under
the age of 40 and 77% under the age of 50
The youngest participant in the study was 16 and
the eldest 82. The most frequently represented was
the 20-29 band with almost a third of interviewees
in this category (12 men and 28 women.) Figure 9
shows this diagrammatically.
Figure 9 Numbers of men and women
in each age band

O Gk 2029 3039 4049 5059 6069 7079 50r
Even B Women

4.2 Ethnicity
In terms of ethnicity people identified themselves in
9 different ways (Tables 6 and 7). Irish Traveller was
the biggest single category.(n=41). All Travellers
totalled 79 and all categories of Gypsy (49).
Seventy one (57%) people said they would identify
themselves as a Gypsy /Traveller on a monitoring
form but a significant number would not.

Figure 10 Percentage of respondents by
ethnic background
Ethnicity

@ AlTravelers @ AllGypsies @ Unknown

Box 1 Declaring Ethnicity

R for not leting the box
Get treated differently

No- I try to blend in

No- I have cuffered raciom all my life and T
feel I am treated differently if people bnow T

am a Traveller
No - I feel I get treated worse

Rather not. It makee people look at you
different and not in a 9aod way

I don't think it helps me only gets people fo
lock at me suspiciovsly in my opinion

No- cometimes it'c easier to stop people
ctaring

No a¢ would not want to be diccriminated
against

Figure 1 Declaring your heritage on an
ethnic monitoring form?
Declaring Ethnicity

1% 2%

\

@ves @nNo @ NoResponse @ It Depends



4 'WHO ARE THE INTERVIEWEES?

4.3 Faith
One hundred and five people identified themselves
as following a faith and 4 different faiths were cited
(Table 8). The Catholic faith was the most heavily
represented n=55.
Figure 12 Percentage of Respondents
by Faith
Faith
NoResponse il
No Faith | EE——
Musiim
Born again Christian .
Christian | EEG——
N

Catholic

Page 26

5 WHERE DO PEOPLE LIVE?

5.1 Location

Tables 9 and 10 contain information on the location
of interviewees homes and the number and
percentage by Local Authority area. There are 10
interviewees from North Wales which is a good
indication of the way in which people travel in and
out of the area to stay with friends, stay on site as
visitors or as residents and then move back to the
Cheshire area. Six of the interviewees from North
Wales were there because they could not get a
place on a site in Cheshire.

Figure 13 Percentage of respondents
by area
LA Area

Visiting 1%

Cheshire West
and Chester
48%

Cheshire East
26%

Figure 14 Number of respondents by
location type

LA Area

nZB*‘ ’— n=29

n=84 ——

@tHouse @site @Parkedon @ Roadside
Jand adjacent  encampment
to

5.2 Domicile type

As Figure 14 and Table 11 show for the majority

of those interviewed their homes were on sites
(84%). Fifty-eight per cent of those sites were
private and the remainder council owned. It was
more difficult to secure interviews with people who
were travelling and we only managed to capture
the views of three people living roadside. However
we did interview others who were highly mobile
and had only been resident for under a month. The
most popular type of home for participants was a
caravan (80). Only 29 respondents said they lived
in houses. (Figure 14)

5.3 Permanence

The notion of permanence is different in the
Gypsy/Traveller Community. There is a cultural
leaning towards ‘moving on’. Thirty five per cent
of the sample identified themselves as not having
a permanent address and yet some of those
respondents had had an association with where
they were living for over 10 years (Tables 12 and
13). Most interviewees did not consider themselves
as being permanently settled even when they had
a long-standing association with the area as they
still travelled for part of the year.

Figure 15 Do you have a permanent
address?

No Response 5 —

n



5 WHERE DO PEOPLE LIVE?

Many people described their residency in ways
which do not suggest permanence.

66

I’ve been here on and
off for 8 years

We’ve been here 12 years,
mostly in the Winter

Vv

Over half, 51% of the sample (n=64) said they still
travelled and 8 respondents described themselves
as highly mobile

99

We asked an additional question about the new
definition of Gypsy and Traveller for planning
purposes and whether this was a factor in
determining their travel patterns. No-one said that
this was relevant to them.
Figure 16 Number of years at

current address

No Response

[
Over 10 Years |
510 Years
4-5 Years |-
34 Years

2-3 Years

12 Years [

Lessthan1

o
@
3
G
N
o
N
&
w
S

The majority of respondents (80) had lived at
their address for less than 5 years. Forty nine
people had been there for less than 2 years. The
shortest residence was 2 days and the longest
over 40 years. Thirty one people had been in their
residence over 5 years.

There are some other indicators of permanence
which can help us to consider the roots that
people have in an area even though they still see

12

themselves as ‘moving on’. Being on the Electoral
Roll for example or registration with Doctors and
Dentists or children enrolled at local schools and
local correspondence addresses.

Only 22 people said they were on the Electoral
Roll. More people were registered with local
Doctors and Dentists although a small number
were registered with Dentists in the south of
England or other towns (Section 7). Seventy-six
families had children enrolled in local schools
(Section 8). All correspondence addresses given
to researchers were local. This additional data
suggests a high level of permanence in the local
area regardless of whether interviewees considered
themselves to have a permanent address.

Figure 17 Percentage of total on
Electoral Roll

No Response 1% —

‘

No 81%

5.4 Who do people live with?

We asked people who they lived with. The most
prevalent household type was spouse and children
comprising 41% of the sample. 14% (n=17) lived
with their spouse only and 9% (n=11) alone (Tables
14-16).

Interviewees were more likely to live in households
with 3 or 5 residents and least likely to live in
households with more than 6 residents. There
were approximately 175 children under the age of
19 linked to the interviewees in the sample. The
majority of families had fewer than 4 children, the
average (median) number of children per family
under the age of 19 being 2.

Page 27

5.5 Satisfaction with living location

Figure 18 Percentage of people happy
where they live

No 3%

No Response 2%

We asked people if they were happy where they
were living, 96 respondents said they were happy
where they lived. Four people were ambivalent in
their response (Tables 17 and 18).

Box2 Ambivalence about
domicile location

The houce gives me secority but I mics being
on site for the company

[it is a] lovely place but transport is a
problem and there is nothing to do to occupy
us. We chould have Bingo. Iim lonely but I do
have family around

[I] want to move to site because of isolation.
I lived in a house for 23 years. The family

T was fliving with was ifl so needed o be in

a house. I also moved away from domestic
abuse

Tllnecs forced uc into a houvse. When we
moved in, the community started a pefition
to get v to move. My grandson lives in a
caravan in the backyard

We want to live on a site co we can mix with
our own people

o:o CHAWREC

Reasons for being unhappy - The reasons given by
those who said they were unhappy fell into 5 broad
categories: No or poor facilities, overcrowding,
relationship problems with cohabitees, wanting
autonomy and to follow own rules, site is isolated.
Box 3 contains examples of lived experiences.

Box 3 Reasons for being unhappy

[T] hate Ellesmere Port [it ic] miserable
and [there ic] poverty

No proper facilities. No hot water or
electric

We are overcrowded I want o be in my own
home

Lonely and facilities not good

Bad memories and want a garden for the

children

Applied for a site because of icolation.
Prefer to be back with the Community but
not enough help form from the Council

Want a houce for health reasons but
ccared to bid in come areas because of
racism

I aum visiting from London. Tim in a council
flat which was supposed to be femporary
when I was caring for my Father. I am
unhappy because people don 't understand
the cultore. I have d‘?ﬁ‘)’cu/fy applying
becavse I get depresced

T want my own plot. Im tired of my
Mother-in-Law

I did apply for a houce 20 years ago but
never heard anything back. I just got
ignored

This is only temporary ac we are waiting
for a proper cite

The pitch I am on has too many vane so
I must leave in 4 weeks. T have nowhere
to stay. My partner is in prison and I am
pregnant.

13



5 WHERE DO PEOPLE LIVE?

‘We asked people if they had ever applied for a

house or a site. Forty seven people said they had.

Respondents gave a number of reasons why they

had applied (Table 18).

Figure 19 Number of people who have
applied for housing or a site

No Answer 10—

Just over a quarter of those who had applied (13)
identified difficulties with the process. Examples
included the process being too complicated , not
having enough help, not having a guarantor and
racism.

14

Page 28

Box 4 Reasons for applying

The worker helped me to get away from my
partner

T was in a house for 7 years in Wrexham

T wanted o.change as I have lived here all my

life

I need a bigger place

I have no water, electric or toilet
I wiss fellow Travellers

I applied for a house in Liverpool becauce there
was raciem in Crewe

I prefer o trailer but I have to be in a hovge at
the moment

T want to be on a proper site. There are never
any empty plote

T want to live in a trailer there arent any sites
they need fo build come

Yec many yearc ago when we were free ctopping

My hucband has tried to find a site for us as
we would like to live in a trailer

We cettled because of the children
I got help with the rent

Applied For council housing but that far down
the bidding property was ucelese. Also had
rented property but was evicted ag (andlord
Found out I was o. Traveller

Years ago when we were free stopping and we
needed somewhere fo live

Box 5 Reasons for not applying
Sometimee the citec are full

[Tin OK JThe Council hefped me to get thic one
I dont like the site it ic noisy and full of drama
Never gome throvgh it. It is too complicated

T would like to apply for hovsing but would
ctruggle to privately rent as I have no
quarantor

6 WHAT DO PEOPLE DO

FOR A LIVING?

6.1 Employment

We asked people what they did for a living (Table
19). Self employment was still the most prevalent
work status although Caring for Children was also
a frequent response. Together they accounted for
almost 2/3rds of responses.

When asked if they had any difficulties finding
work responses fell roughly into 2 categories:
Those attributed to race and secondly those
concerned with lack of education and experience.
Examples are documented below in Box 6.

Box6 Comments about Employment
To do with Race
Who the F***k ic going o take a Traveller

on’?

I keep looking but I can’t get anything
becavse of my addrecs and my criminal
record

I just work for myself becauce no-one would
employ me when they find out T'm a Gypey.

I have a problem becauge I am a Traveller
but T also strugsle because being self
employed I don't earn enough

To do with lack of education/
experience

It difficult because I've got no education or
qualifications

[Te] got no previous experience

[Te] never applied anywhere, just been
offered things

Many saw these difficulties as intractable but
one respondent used the following strategy to
overcome these difficulties:

T can change my accent and people don't know
Tm a Traveller’

We asked an additional question about the impact
of changes in the law relating to hawking, scrap
metal and horse passports. Most people did not
respond to this question. Just a couple said they
disregarded the law on hawking;

T know about it but I juct hawk anyway’

A few others just referred in general to how
difficult things had become to earn a living.

6.2 NINO

We asked people whether they had a National
Insurance Number (Table 20 and Figure 20),
about their work status (Table 19) and if they had
experienced any difficulties whilst looking for work
(Box 6). Interviewees were more forthcoming
about this aspect of their lives than they were in
2006. Eighty-six per cent of the sample said they
had a number.

Figure 20 Percentage of sample with a
National Insurance Number

PNTS 11% “ Not Known 2%
|

No 1%

Yes 86%

PNTS:
Prefer not to say.

15



6 WHAT DO PEOPLE DO FOR A LIVING?

6.3 Benefit income

Figure 21 Percentage in receipt
of benefits

Not known 2%

Not in receipt
of benefits
34%

In receipt
of benefits
64%

We asked respondents if they were in receipt

of benefits (Table 21). Sixty four per cent of the
sample (n=80) said that they were. In 2006 the
discussion of money was seen to be a no go area
when we were developing the research but in this
research people were more willing to discuss this.
The gathering of information about type of benefit
was much more haphazard however and a little
misleading to report as it is such a partial picture.
The overall impression though is that more people
are accessing what they are entitled to.

The difficulties respondents were having accessing
benefits though are very illuminating and can be
seen in Box 7.

16

Box7 Problems applying

for benefits
Systemic problems
I do not claim IS part of Carers alfowance
as I will need to claim (niversal Credit
and don't want to as [I] cannot cope with
monthly pay
T ctruggle with Universal Credit
once a month payments. I have fo
keep asking my ?Zmi/y for food and
h\ﬂ"ey
T think I should have the higher rate but
ceared to appeal in case I loce what I have
Univercal Credit is strecsful and causing
anxiety For my daughter
I can't get housing benefit becavce of my
cavings but thece are for a new van
PIP and ESA medicale have been really bad
experiences
Problems with ill health and inability
to navigate the system
Benefits are stopped becavse af[».y] mental
ill health
[I] needed help to claim
Missing appointments due to deprescion
Debt worry from Housing Benefit
When the worker from ICC wae made
redundant I missed my appointments
because I cant read. My benefits stopped. T

was a year without my main ones until che
came back

54 I am lucky I can read and write or T
would have had problems

Benefite are too hard we need help
Problems with mail and NFA

When travelling using places as care of
address and if I dont get the mail in time I
miss appointments

Problems claiming when you have no
permanent addrecs

Page 29

7 HEALTH AND WELFARE

7.1 Registration with GPs and Dentists
We asked people if they were registered with a
Doctor and a Dentist (Tables 22 and 23). Ninety-
three percent of respondents said they were
registered with a GP and almost 3/4 of these said
they were travelling 2 miles or less to see them.
Fewer people were registered with a Dentist
(80%), however this is a huge improvement on the
position in 2006 when only 40% were registered.
However respondents travel further to see a
Dentist with only 56% travelling 2 miles or less.

16 % are travelling over 5 miles and 4 people are
registered with Dentists who are very distant
(Essex, London, South Wales).

‘When asked about difficulties experienced with GP
and Dentist registration respondents on balance
felt it was easier now than in the past to register
with a GP but that being removed from lists of
registrants for infrequent attendance, waiting lists
and books closed to NHS registration still made it
difficult to register with a Dentist three people who
were not currently registered were on waiting lists
and one had been on the list for 2 years.

Years ago it was virtually imposcible to see a
Doctor without a permanent address’

Four had never been registered and 6 said they
had only been registered as a child. Registration
was still difficult for those who did not have a fixed
address.

7.2 Service use

When respondents were asked to rate their
levels of satisfaction with health related services
hospitals and doctors attracted some of the
highest satisfaction scores.

We asked people if they had used any other health
services in the last 12 months. 105 people said that
they had. Table 24 lists these by service type and
as a percentage of total responses. By far the most
prevalent response accounting for almost half of
all responses was the use of Walk in clinics. The
majority of these attendances were for children
when the Doctor’s surgery was closed or there
were no GP appointments.

Men were more likely to use A&E when they were
travelling for work. Work injuries like dealing with
breaks, cuts or falls were common.

o:o CHAWREC

T was very pleased with the freatment when T
cut myself at work and they treated me’

Appointments with Specialists and the use of
specialist mental health care accounted for a fifth
of all responses. Four people were also accessing
counselling services.

Six per cent had used private health care
explaining that the main reason for this had been
long NHS waiting lists. Two people had paid
privately for dental care because they could not
get registered with a Dentist.

We also asked people to consider what other
types of health advice they would be likely to
call on in their everyday lives. The responses are
documented in Table 25. Family advice was the
most frequently cited response accounting for
almost a third of all answers (32%). Advice from
the Chemist (24%) and advice from friends and
neighbours (15% ) were also important sources
for our respondents. The use of herbal remedies
and self care were also important, often as a first
course of action.

T try to treat things myself for the first 24
hours but get extra help if it goes on longer.”

7.3 Health conditions

We gathered data about health conditions,
disability and caring in a number of different parts
of the questionnaire.

Twenty-seven people identified themselves as ill
or disabled for the purpose of work status and
four people said they were carers in answer to the
same question. However, when asked about any
benefits claimed 21 people said they were claiming
disability related benefits.

We asked people if they had any disabilities or
ilinesses or lived in close contact with anyone

else who had. When talking about themselves 113
interviewees cited health conditions which are
listed in Table 26. Problems with mental health
were cited by 61 people, accounting for over half of
all responses. Muscular-skeletal problems was the
second most prevalent answer, things such as back
and neck problems and joint pain.

17



7 HEALTH AND WELFARE

When asked about the health of people close to
them, 56 respondents mentioned health conditions
experienced by family members (Table 27). Mental
health conditions accounted for 75% of these
responses.

In response to concerns expressed about poor
mental health in consultation sessions we asked
some specific questions about mental health
asking people to score their mood and well
being levels which are recorded in Tables 28 and
29 and discussed below. It is worth considering
therefore that the additional focus on mental
health may have influenced the responses of some
interviewees when asked about health conditions
which may explain mental health accounting

for the high frequency rates cited above.
However, there is no doubt from speaking to the
communities that mental ill health is extremely
common.

We asked respondents if they or
any family members suffered with
mental ill health. 47 people (38%)
said that they did.

18

Page 30

7.4 Mental health self assessment

We then asked respondents to think about their
own mental health and well being over the past
week and position themselves on a scale of 0-3.
We used two commonly applied public health
questions for assessing mood and well being,
known as PHQ2. We used these to avoid the
medical terms which could affect or impact upon
response rates and information shared.

In terms of engagement in daily life 37% recorded
a score of 2 or 3 meaning that they were
experiencing a suppressed interest in daily life for
more than half of the week.

In terms of feeling low 36% recorded scores of 2 or
3 meaning that they were experiencing some level
of depressed mood for more than half of the week.

Sometimes poor living conditions, multiple health
problems and poor mental health are woven
together.

66

I have depression, anxiety, mobility
problems, | can’t walk very far

and have panic attacks. I live on

a private site where | have been

on and off for a few years. There

is no water, electric or toilet. | get
DLA but no help from my family or
mental health services. I live alone

in bad conditions and travel. | see
Specialists and | am registered with a
GP but not with a Dentist as | have a
phobia. | suffer badly with depression
and anxiety.

Although people mentioned family mental illness
there was a general lack of knowledge about
mental health services or who helped their relative.
This lack of knowledge also became apparent
when we asked people to score their satisfaction
level with a range of services. Mental health
services was an area that people did not have
knowledge about which is of concern.

8 EDUCATION

8.1 Currentinvol with

Table 30 and Box 8 document the data collected
from interviewees about their experiences of
education.

We were interested to know if interviewees had
children of their own or as part of their extended
family who attended playgroups, schools or
colleges and what their views were of these
establishments as well as what their personal
experiences of education were. Sixty one per
cent had current experience of local educational
services.

Box 8 Difficulties finding schools for
children in their family

It icn't fair. In the past we have been
turned away

We had problems to begin with because there
are limited places

When the children were young we were
travelling so it made it impossible. They never

went

Sehool ic tos far. They gave our place away
and so kids are in z/iﬁ’{'mhf cchools

Have applied but there are no places

Box9 Perceived quality of education

VVery pleased. Excuse about being over-
cubscribed initially

T was fined for taking the kids out of
cchool when my cister-in-law pacced away
0 I feel the School Board do wot have an
underctanding [of culture]. I felf targeted.

We don't like dope, druge and knives

Primary is good but dont want them to
attend High School. There is raciom and a
boy wag killed

T believe in education

There ic a problem with bullying. It is good
to primary level

It is important for kide

They are treated well by the
teachers and they love going.
We used fo struggle with places

High school ic brilliant and he is doing well
but there was bullying at primary school

VVery go0d they have a good understanding
with cex education ag our children are not
taught it

o:o CHAWREC

19



8 EDUCATION

8.2 Former involvement in education
We asked interviewees if there was anything they
wished to tell us about their own educational
experience. Seventy per cent of the sample (n=88)
made some comment about their own experiences.
Sixty five people told us in detail about their
education and Table 31 records this.

Of these 27 had never been to school and a further
24 left school before secondary education. In terms
of literacy 19 people told us they could read and
write. (Table 32).

Eight people told us the reason for not going to
school or for bad experiences in school (Table 32).
Being bullied/discriminated against was the most
prevalent response.

20

Box10 Comments about
respondents education
I really enjoyed my schooling

I didn't do much in cchool. I was bullied and
called fat and stupid

I never went but my children are feaching
me to read and write

Too late for me but want it fo be
better for the kids

Education was non - existent

I didn't have one [education]. Better for hide
these days

Too old, I didnt have one but very important
these days

Important for kids

We don't really believe in it. I attended
primary and can read a little

I didn't have o lot of education.
I wich things were different

I didn't g0 to school. It is comething I would
have loved to do

I never had one but I want it for my kids

Page 31

9 SENSE OF BELONGING
AND INVOLVEMENT

We asked respondents to consider how involved
they felt in their own communities and then to
consider the wider community and how involved
they felt there. We asked them to consider this
using a scale of 1-10, ten being the most involved
you could feel (Table 33).

9.1 Involvement in the Gypsy and
Traveller communities
Perhaps not surprisingly interviewees felt more
involved in their own communities than with the
‘wider community. Ranking responses the most
popular answer was 10 which indicates the highest
level of involvement (n= 35). Eighty four people
ranked their involvement as being from 6-10. This
is consistent with the high level of satisfaction
recorded with neighbours where 91 people said
they were satisfied (Table 35).

9.2 Involvement in the mainstream
community
The responses for the wider community indicate
a much lower sense of involvement. The most
prevalent response was a score of 5 recorded by
27 people. The majority of respondents rated their
involvement at the lower end of the spectrum
between 1and 5 (88). This is consistent with the
dissatisfaction recorded with the wider community
(see Table 34-ranking second). Some respondents
indicated that how involved they felt with the
wider community depended on acceptance. A
Mother commented that for some activities like
boxing they felt very involved because the children
were accepted into the boxing community.




Page 32

10 SATISFACTION WITH SERVICES

We asked people to rank their satisfaction
with a range of services (Table 35).

The results

(raan)

22

are recorded by satisfaction level.

SATISFACTION

The highest satisfaction levels were with neighbours where...

91 87 74

people said people felt their landlord

they were similarly about
very satisfied their doctor
or satisfied

DISSATISFACTION

Respondents recorded The wider community@ The Police @
most dissatisfaction with

businesses

AMBIVALENCE

There was most ambivalence, that is, a recording of not satisfied
or dissatisfied, a neutral position; for the Police, the council

and local businesses.

UNCERTAINTY ABOUT

Recording a response of ‘don’t know’ accounted for 15%
of responses overall, indicating lack of knowledge, or uncertainty
about, the service. These responses comprised...

Mental Health Services @ | Health Visiting @ | The benefits agency@

11 CONCERN ABOUT
COMMUNITY ISSUES

An important outcome for this research is

that we have been able to include questions
about changing society which had previously
been considered taboo in Gypsy and Traveller
communities and we were advised not to ask in the
2006 research: Issues such as domestic violence,
family breakdown, alcohol and drug abuse and
suicide. In our earlier consultations members of
the community expressly asked us to include
these topics as they were concerned about them
and the majority of interviewees have been happy
to talk about these issues and some additional
issues affecting their communities, which is an
important difference to the position 13 years ago.
The responses indicated real concern about the
impacts on the community and confusion about
why some issues were now so prevalent. The high
suicide rate was of deep concern to many. (Table
36).

When asked about these issues, there was most
concern about drug and alcohol abuse and suicide
(64 in each category) domestic violence (50) and
family breakdown (38). Additional issues raised
were grooming and sexual exploitation, loss of
heritage and homophobia.

CHAWREC

We asked people to say
why they were worried.
Some responses revealed
general concern...

Box 11 General concern about issues
in the Community

Qur community is more at rick as we are
more likely not fo get support o can suffer
From all of thece

All of these icsues are a. worry because they
are $0 common within the community

Becavse it ic so common within the Travelling
community

The young people just take druge and they get
drunk. They don't realice how dangerous it ic

You hear a lot about these things

Drinking ic cuch a curse on most Travellers
and o0 many young men are taking their
own lives. Something muct be done

There are too many young men. killing
themeelves over not earning encugh money

There ic a rise in these problems. I think it
is scary

So many things but lste of young men
committing suicide or having themeelvec
cectioned either because of the pressure to
keep up with the Jonec or because of their
cexuality

Too many cuicidec in young people in the lact
few years. It'c very sad

Young girls being groomed by other Travellers
thewn being forced to sleep with lots of
different men

Lots of things are going on but my wife and
Son are my only worries

23



n CONCERN ABOUT COMMUNITY ISSUES

For others concern came from a more personal
perspective because their family had experienced
the issues first hand.

Box12 Concern because of
personal experience
Too many young people dectroying their lives

and I have young children and I don't want
them messing with drinks and drage

T know lote of young people who stil drink
and foke druge and they are always fighting
and arquing cavsing families to cplit and this
has led to suicides

Our nephew hung himself we are all still
grieving

T ctill keep in contact with come of the
community and drug abuse is terrible and co
ic sexval exploitation of both young boys and
girle sometimes leading to cuicide

My own. con doec not mix at all with the
Gypsy/ Traveller community but I worry for
my wider family

I have seen families forn apart
by some people abusing themselves
using drvgs and alcohol as an
escape from the drudge of things

My brother has had probleme with addiction

Page 33

12 DISCRIMINATION

66

A man called me Gypsy Tramp
and Pikey Scum at the Cinema
in May this year and also
threatened to beat me up. My
wife and children were present
as well as staff members of the
cinema. The police were called
but took no action.

The experience of the respondent above
encapsulates the encounters that many of
our respondents wanted to tell us about-
unfair and unpleasant treatment which goes
unchallenged when people are out with

their families engaged in everyday activities.

We asked interviewees to reflect on their
experiences of discriminatory treatment
in three ways. First a general question
about being treated unfairly because of
their racial background; secondly, any
experiences of abuse or physical attack
and how often they experience this and
thirdly whether any of these incidents had
happened in the last year.

Sadly, these questions were the most
comprehensively completed sections of
the form with plenty of supplementary
information.(n=120) They reveal that
almost without exception community
members face exclusion, verbal abuse and
differential treatment wherever they go.
Most never seek support or help for this as
they have not been supported in the past.

12.1 Unfair treatment

Ninety three per cent reported that

they had been treated unfairly at some
time in their life because of their ethnic
background. The most prevalent form of
unfair treatment cited was to be treated
differently in shops, restaurants and pubs
and when using other services in the
community. Many of the instances referred
to would amount to either a hate crime or

discrimination under the Equality Act 2010.

(Tables 37 and 38).

o:o CHAWREC

Box 13 Examples of unfair treatment

People not wanting to sit next to you in doctors. Jobe
being cancelled when they find out you're a Gypey.
Being pulled over by the police for no good reasen.
Not being served in pubs and restaurants for being a
Gypsy/ Traveller

Funny looks in the doctors or at the children’s school.
Being treated diferently in chops and banks

T uced to get bullied at school and when I left
officially at 16 I ctarted working in a factory. It was
the same

Follswed arsund shops by the ctore detectives and
people move away in the doctors

People view vs with sucpicion and this ic everywhere
Education and public services

When I lived in a traifer I feft I was treated lese
equal when they caw the caravan sife addrecs

When trying to get work or be in come rectaurante I
have been cingled out as a Traveller

All the time. If customers reafice I am a
Gypsy they will either cancel the job or
they ask me not fo call again

From being bullied in school to being followed arsund
chope by ctore detectives to being stopped for no
reacon by the police

In school, work and shops. I have been removed from
chope for being a Travefler

When I was younger. That's why I don't let on I'im a
Cypsy

T was bullied at school- been bullied while oot working
and called racict names- I've been treated differently
at the Doctore and Dentist but its life

Felt when looking for a hovce I was not getting one
ag landlords knew T wag a Traveller

In the GP curgery I cannot get an appointment. Got
accused of not paying in a restavrant. Going fo the
chop the stalf follswing me afl the time thinking I am
chap lifting

Too many times to count and we've weddinge and
christenings cancelled just because theyVve found out
were Travellers

25



12 DISCRIMINATION

Of those who said they had not experienced
unfair treatment ( n=9) three respondents had
explanations for this.

it'e becavse I don't act like a Traveller’

it becavce I don't go out much because of my
health’

it becavse people know me’
These explanations are consistent with responses
which suggest that individuals perceive that there
has been a lessening of incidents as they have
become older or more settled in an area (see Box
14 below).

Box14 Respondent theories on why
unfair treatment has lessened

Thinge aren’t co bad now I'm older
Not so bad now a¢ T don't g0 ovt much

Diccrimination law has made it
better. It ic much better in School
now they come down on racism
very hard

Knowing our rights we can challenge more

There has been less cince we've been in the
house

12.2 The impact of discrimination
Whilst relaying their experiences of discrimination
respondents also inevitably talked about the
impact these events had on their lives and the
lives of their families. Events like the experience
at the Cinema mentioned at the beginning of this
section impact not only the person being abused
but also those with them in this case the family.
Respondents used vivid vocabulary when they
recounted events and described experiences as
awful and terrible or upsetting and very hurtful

26

Page 34

Respondents also mentioned the lasting impact
abuse had had on them:

My Mum was attacked as a child. She was very
ccared and never forgot that experience

Tve been called some disqusting things. It'e
comething that alwaye sticks with you'

The event left my lad crying

One respondent said it had an adverse effect on
him going out:-

It was terrible during my school years and
becavse of that I didn't go out much and when
I ctarted driving I was always being stopped

I don't like to complain but we get treated like
third clacs citizens, it's horrible

12.3 Experience of abuse or attack

The next most common form of abuse, accounting
for 14% of responses was physical attack. These
incidents included beatings, being spat on, sprayed
with air freshener, threatened with violence and
frightening images on Facebook ( Pride in the
Port) where Caravans are being torched and racist
language used (Tables 39 and 40).

We asked interviewees if they had ever
experienced abuse or attack. Almost three quarters
of the sample had with the most common form

of abuse being verbal, accounting for over 70%

of all incidents. Box 12 records just some of the
verbal abuse recounted by participants. Many
respondents recorded that name calling was
common place and displayed a type of acceptance
of this as being ‘par for the course.’

Name calling, however, was often a precursor to
incidents which led to respondents being ‘put out’
or excluded from facilities or being threatened with
or actually experiencing physical violence.

Box15 Examples and frequency of
name calling

In the Indian restavrant got called racict
names- caid Travellers belong in dog kennels

Too many times to list

Too many times to list. Just the other day T
overheard my neighbours calling us Gypoc

We alwaye get called bad names. It isn't very
nice To be treated <o bad

Being called Gypo and Pikey ic something
that happens most days

Getting called Pikey is the vsual thing

IF I had a pound for every fime someone has
called me & dirty Gypo
Pikey seems To be the favourite word

We have been called Pikey, Gypo, ccum but
now we are in this house it isnt as bad

Nawme calling happens all the time especially

when we are moving around looking for work

I think wherever we go we get called names
and given bad lvoks

Getting called 620” and Pikey happens at

least once a weej

People muttering racial terms or being
followed around chops

Lots of different occacions.
I have been called dicgusting
things. It'c something that
alwaye sticks with you

Box16 Examples of physical abuse
Naume calling, threatened with violence

Called names and got beaten up when I was
Yyounger

Name calling and when I was younger we
once had a petrol bomb thrown at vs it was
very frightening

Racist name calling and a few years ago T
was beaten up with my two friends

Tve been called racist names and when T
challenged one person they pulled a knife on

me

When my daughter was at cchool she
experienced name calling, bullying and
phycical violence

I once had a bottle thrown at me and was
called awful abucive namee

Petrol bomb

I get called Pikey and get hit because I am a
Traveller. It hasnt happened in the last few
months but it was all the time

T have been stoned before

In school T wag kit and called names by
other children and ctaff members

The seftled community throw stones at us
when on encampments

Neume calling i a big one and Tve been
ctoned in the past while travelling

Called names and attacked by a cecurity
guard who didn't like Gypsiec. The security
man was sacked

Pride in the Port- all sver the internet and
on Facebook..inciting racial hatred

Experienced phycical attack by cettled
community and alco another y&m‘/y member
has been kifled

27



12 DISCRIMINATION

12.4 Resp to discri

We asked interviewees if any of the incidents
they reported had happened recently, within

the last year. Just over half of the sample (53%)
reported that they had. The most common form
being verbal abuse or reactions like moving seats
in waiting areas. This category accounted for
over half of all incidents. Being followed in shops
constituted the second most highly recorded
action (almost a quarter of all incidents). Physical
abuse occurred in 1in 10 cases and included
murder of a family member, knife attack, being
spat on and sprayed with air freshener and the
threat of physical violence. More far reaching,
however, was the threat of violence which included
intimidation, incitement to violence and violent
imagery delivered through social media, the Pride
in the Port website quoted by many respondents
as an example of this (Tables 41 and 42)

Box17 Examples in the last year
Nawme calling whilet walking my dog like Pikey

cum

We get called Pikey all the time

Just the name calling and people moving seats
Newme calling and being refused cervice

Name calling and being spit at

I was called Pikey and Secam while out
chopping

Children racially abused in the park

Nawme calling

Name calling and being pit at

A year ago a family member wag killed and
we received name calling From the community

At schosl

Not being able to get a house

Went into a shop and the woman
behind the counter got a tin of

air frechener and sprayed it all
around me

Tn shaps and my family were put out
At the hairdressers

28

Box18 How do people respond
to these events?

Some minimise the importance of
verbal abuse by using language which
normalises it.

Just name calling
Just the name calling and people moving seats
Others react by not taking action...

..... My husband cuffers abuse but mostly lets
it clide

My son had an incident at cchool and T get
ceveral incidente every week but I mostly
don't bother

Nawme calling but I vsually try to challenge
them and ask why they are being nasty and
hartful

Yec...that's why I dow't use the local shops
and garages or pube

12.5 Reporting

When asked a general question about reporting
incidents 27 respondents cited reasons for not so
doing. These are cited in Table 44. The notion of
not being listened to, that no-one would care or
that it would be a waste of time were the most
frequently cited responses accounting for 59% of
answers. Of the people who had experienced an
incident in the last 12 months (94) only 16 said they
had reported it to anyone.

When asked to consider who they would report
an incident to from a range of options, the Police,
Church, School and Family were the most prevalent
responses (Table 45). Of those who had reported
incidents, 14 people said they were dissatisfied
with the outcome of their complaint.

12.6 Stop and search

‘We asked people about their experiences of stop
and search. Forty-three people said that they

had experience of this and 20 people said it had
happened to them in the last year. In a separate
question covering all experience of Stop and
Search we asked people if they had received a
clear explanation of why they were being stopped.
Thirty-four people responded to this question.

Page 35

Box19 Peoples’ experiences of
Stop and Search

IF your motor ic regictered to a site they
treat you worce than a dog

Too many to list. Ueually the reason given
ic there’s been a robbery and you fit the
description given

I have been ctopped at work, going to work,
looking for work, any excuse for them to
check you out

Feel police pull us over alf the time for no
reason

Stopped many times becauce I am a Traveller
Better now becavse ofl the

paperwork i¢ on my phone and T
can show it straight away




Page 36

13 COMPARING THE 2006
AND 2019 RESULTS

In 2006 the main driver for the study was to
establish a knowledge base for the development
of a Gypsy and Traveller Network. As a starting
point we engaged community members and
up-skilled them to collect information about

the lives of Gypsy and Traveller communities
and to understand more about their needs and
preferences.

The data proved to be important to a range of
agencies then and for years to come as there

were few other similar sources of information. This
study was commissioned to update this knowledge
base and to understand how the experiences and
day to day needs and preferences of Gypsies and
Travellers have changed or perhaps remained the
same 13 years on.

This work aimed to address some of the gaps

in the 2006 study by engaging more men,
particularly young men. We have also interviewed
more Irish Travellers through the connections
offered by Irish Community Care. We were

not successful in interviewing more people

in Roadside Encampments, in part because
Travellers are finding it increasingly difficult to
find places to camp by the roadside. However we
have interviewed a number of people describing
themselves as highly mobile.

Perhaps most importantly we have been able

to address some taboo subjects which we knew
about in 2006 but were unable to talk about
because of their sensitive nature. In this study
community members urged us to include these
topics in the questionnaire and the majority of
respondents talked about them at length. Earlier
when examining the characteristics of this sample
the 2006 and 2019 samples were compared.

In addition the comparison matrix (Table 46)
compares, in summary, a range of study domains.
Comparing the samples and the findings it is useful
in the first instance to examine what has changed
and what has remained the same.

30

13.1 What’s Similar

There were still more women than men in the
sample but the differential was reduced. The
number of interviewees from different locations
and location types were roughly similar and it was
still the case that the majority lived on sites. The
age structure was also similar but the median age
was slightly older. Registration with a GP remains
high. Similar numbers said that they were happy
where they were living. The same proportions said
they were ill and unable to work. The proportion
of carers was also similar. Similar proportions

of people experiencing incidents of abuse had
reported it to someone but this was still low at less
than one fifth of incidents.

13.2 What’s different?

It was much harder to engage people as
community researchers this time but the
community were interested in being involved in
the work.

Interviewees seemed more open to speaking

to non-Gypsies when accompanied by people
they knew and trusted, and willing to talk openly
about a range of sensitive issues. Concerns
about privacy seemed to be more about their
neighbours not knowing what they had said
rather than the settled community. The sample is
therefore 34% bigger.

The ethnic mix of the sample has changed.
There are now more Travellers than Gypsies,
a reversal of the position in 2006. Travellers
accounted for 61% in the current sample
compared to only 14% in 2006.

Dental registrations have improved by 42%.

There was a 30% increase in the number
experiencing unfair treatment when the number
in 2006 comprised only one fifth of the sample.
The experience of abuse was more prevalent in
2019 cited by 40% more people.

13.3 What‘s new in 2019?

‘We have important perspectives on a range of
sensitive issues which we were unable to collect

in 2006. There is clear evidence that offering a
trusted community engagement service increases
inclusion and willingness to share information.

ICC have been working in Cheshire West for over
19 years and have built a reputation which is
highlighted by the fact that 46% of all respondents
came from the Cheshire West area, and many were
engaged through the regular Drop In Service.

« Benefits: 31% more people are claiming Health
& Social Care Benefits. The proportion of the
sample who said they were self employed has
also doubled.

+ Residency at the same address for more than
5 years fell by 18% and the average family size
(mode) was bigger in this sample.

« More of the sample has an association with
education with a 20% increase and almost
twice as many people were willing to divulge
information about their own education.

A fifth more said they were still travelling in the
2019 sample than in 2006.

« More people told us they had been subject to
Stop and Search by the Police.

« Literacy was much poorer
in this sample than in 2006.

o:o CHAWREC 31



14 DISCUSSION

In 2006 high stress levels and a possible under-
claim of benefits were raised as areas of concern.
The position regarding benefits has improved and
services such as the Gypsy and Traveller Drop

in Service hosted by ICC and held in the Council
Offices in Ellesmere Port have undoubtedly helped
with this. However, there are still considerable
obstacles to claiming entitlements, in the form of
receiving and being able to read and understand
letters, navigating new systems and managing
monthly pay dates. Providing up to date self
employment records and dealing with over
payments and penalties were key problems.

As many respondents
confided - it is just too
complicated.

In 2006 3/5ths of the sample recorded feelings
of stress and the majority scored themselves
towards the high end of the spectrum. We did not
ask a strictly comparative question but the results
in 2019 reveal mental health concerns in almost
half of the sample and debilitating symptoms

of depression in 2/5ths of these respondents.

In addition respondents indicated their worry

and concern about the rising suicide rate in the
community and problems with substance abuse.

The very high incidence of racist abuse and
differential treatment is of serious concern. The
lasting impact on those abused and their families
makes for uncomfortable reading as well as the
almost normalised retelling of racist incidents in
daily life and the accompanying low expectation

of securing a mainstream job or enjoying hassle
free shopping or family time in the cinema or in a
restaurant. In addition the impact on the family and
the enduring frightening nature of events was hard
to hear. The link between high levels of racist abuse
and differential treatment and mental ill health
needs to be more fully explored.

32

In connection with this the low level of incident
reporting and the drop in cases being taken has
damaged connections between Gypsies and
Travellers and the settled community. Many of
the lived experiences mention not being listened
to or not being believed and the feeling that no
one cares. These notions were commonplace in
questionnaire responses.

There is some sense that everyday abuse is to be
expected and an acceptance of discriminatory
treatment as part of everyday life. In some areas
of life there is very little expectation of achieving
what many people have- a mainstream job for
example. Abuse and disadvantage is in part
normalised.

The separateness of communities and the isolation
from the mainstream feeds differential treatment.
One respondent described this as a ‘ripple effect.’

66

People view us with sus
of the way we dress and speak. People
make assumptions about us and follow

us in shops and ask us to pay upfront

for services. We are all tarred with the
same brush, it is shameful. There is a
ripple effect: the settled community make
assumptions about us and we, because we
have these experiences, make assumptions
about the settled community.

Vv

This isolation and hostility from the settled
community means that people are very dependent
on their own communities, which makes it very
hard to leave when there is a problem. All aspects
of their lives are lived through the lens of ethnicity.
The expectation (and experience) is that when
their ethnicity is uncovered they will be stopped
and searched, or lose the job they had secured or

be asked to pay up front or leave the restaurant, or

be unable to get an appointment.

9

Page 37

15 RECOMMENDATIONS

Mental ill health continues to be a serious
problem for Gypsies and Travellers. Alcohol and
substance abuse, the misuse of over the counter
medications and the rise in suicides of people in
all age groups is an urgent unexplained problem.
This work can speculate on the pressures faced
by community members but they themselves
do not fully understand the complexities of

why this is happening. Further work is urgently
needed here to understand this phenomenon
and culturally appropriate and culturally aware
support for those in crisis needs to be available
and publicised

This research did not actively collect data on the
use and impact of social media on people’s lives
and their mental health. The negative impacts

of social media on what have been traditionally
private communities and a private way of life did
emerge as a problem in terms of mental distress
and exposure to ideas and lives outside Gypsy
and Traveller communities. In addition the use
of social media as a vehicle for bullying and
propagating racial hatred is also of concern. The
impact of this societal change on communities
needs to be further explored.

The high incidence of mental distress and the
lack of knowledge about mental health services
need to be addressed. Health workers who
understand the different way of life and the
pressures that people face may be able to offer
more targeted help that people will accept.

Training for GPs and Mental Health Teams which
can help them understand Gypsy and Traveller
communities and the difficulties they face will
be an important first step to developing services
which can reach these groups.

In addition community events involving mental
health teams and the communities will facilitate
understanding on both sides and help to build
bonds.

®_® CHAWREC

High levels of differential treatment and abuse
are shocking and worse than 13 years ago.
Gypsies and Travellers feel unsupported and
that no one cares about what is happening to
them. Lack of funding has meant that Cheshire,
Halton & Warrington Race & Equality Centre

is less able to engage with Gypsy Traveller
communities to encourage reporting of racist
incidents. At one point over 50% of Cheshire,
Halton & Warrington Race & Equality Centre’s
discrimination casework clients were Gypsies
and Travellers; a testament to the trust
developed through its community development
work as well as a number of successful cases.
Investment is needed to drive up reporting of
discrimination and hate crime in the Gypsy
and Traveller communities through specialist
organisations like Cheshire, Halton & Warrington
Race & Equality Centre and Irish Community
Care. Without successful cases the community
will continue to face discrimination and abuse
without justice and remain unsupported.

A specialist reporting hot line might be a useful
tool. This exists nationally through Report
Racism GRT but is not currently within the North
West.

Further explore the impact of the high incidence
of discrimination and abuse on the mental
health and well being of the community offering
services that can build resilience.

The ripple effect articulated by one of the
respondents needs to be addressed. A team

of Gypsies and Travellers who would spend
time educating in schools and agencies about
their way of life might go some way to opening
people’s minds from both mainstream and
Gypsy and Traveller communities.

Community cohesion work is required with
all Services receiving training, and anti-
discriminatory messages clearly publicised
throughout localities, and via Chambers of
Commerce and other community forums.

33



15 RECOMMENDATIONS

+ Short films can be a good way to spread a
message. The types of discrimination that
people face is frequent and impactful. A film
with people telling their stories would be
particularly hard hitting.

It is clear that services like the drop in at
Ellesmere Port run by Irish Community Care are
a very important resource for communities but is
very over -subscribed. This service needs to be
sustained and expanded.

Trust is a very important commodity when
engaging with any community. Services

which can assist Gypsies and Travellers have
engendered trust because of their actions. Lack
of funding and recognition of the importance

of this relationship within public and other
community services has meant that this
interaction is impaired. It is important that
austerity does not negatively affect bonds
between communities further as many members
of the community are in need of the services the
mainstream community can provide, but cannot
reach without trusted navigators. Further work
needs to be done to repair these bonds through
events, consultations and projects which engage
Gypsy and Traveller communities.

There is a lack of recognition of the strengths
within Gypsy and Traveller communities and
all who wish to engage would benefit from
recognising the communities assets, and
work from a place of positive community
empowerment and inclusion.

34

Page 38

REFERENCES

Cromarty, H. (2017) Gypsies and Travellers. House of Commons Briefing Paper Number 08083.
House of Commons Library

DCLG ( 2012) Reducing inequalities for Gypsies and Travellers: Progress Report

EHRC (2010) How Fair is Britain? Equality, Human Rights and Good Relations in 2010
- The First Triennial Review

EHRC (2015) Is Britain Fairer? The State of Equality and Human Rights in 2015.
EHRC (2016) Is Britain fairer? Spotlight Report: The Experience of Gypsies, Travellers and Roma in England

Gov.UK(2019) Press Release new national Strategy to tackle Gypsy, Roma and Traveller Inequalities.
https://www.gov.uk/government/news/new-national-strategy-to-tackle-gypsy-roma-and-traveller-
inequalities. 12/9/2019

House of Commons (2019) Tackling inequalities faced by Gypsy, Roma and Traveller Communities:
Government and Ofsted response to the Committees seventh Report of session 2017-19.
House of Commons Women and Equalities Committee

Irish Community Care (2016) Snapshot Baseline Research Report in 2014-15:
Traveller Experience of Life in the Ellesmere Port area of West Cheshire.

Lawlor, W. (2017) Written evidence to The Parliamentary Women and Equalities Committee.
From Irish Community Care in relation to the Gypsy, Roma and Traveller Communities Enquiry 2017

Mohdin, A.(2019) Government has comprehensively failed Gypsies, say MPs
https://www.theguardian.com/world/2019/apr/04/government-has-comprehensively-failed-gypsies-say-mps

Parliamentary question[Written](2014) PQ HL 2504 [Travellers] deposited paper November 2014.
House of Commons Library

®_® CHAWREC 35




Page 39

FREQUENCY TABLES

Table1 Quality of information collected at interview as assessed by interviewer Table 5 Number and percentage of sample in each age band
Score Number Age band Number %
10 13 Under 20 8 7
9 25 20-29 40 32
8 25 30-39 24 19
7 23 40-49 24 19
6 16 50-59 14 1
5 13 60-69 4 3
4 5 70-79 10 8
3 4 80 and over 1 1
2 1 Total 125 100
1 o
10 = best it could be, 1 = worst it could be, n=125 Table 6 Self—reported Ethnicity
Ethnic category Number
Table 2 Interviewer perceptions of engagement as a percentage of all respondents Irish Traveller 41
Participation level Number Percentage English Gypsy 36
Little to say 46 37% English Traveller 19
Plenty to say 79 63% Gypsy n
Traveller 6
Table 3 Age and gender profile of interviewees No response 3
Age category Men Women Total Travelling man/woman 2
Under 20 5 3 8 Roma Gypsy 2
20-29 12 28 40 Welsh Traveller 1
30-39 8 16 24 British Traveller 1
40-49 9 15 24 Total 122
50-59 6 8 14 N=i22
60-69 1 3 4
70-79 4 6 10 Table 7 Would you tick the Gypsy and Traveller box on an ethnic monitoring form?
80 and over 1 o 1 Yes No Depends No response
Total 46 79 125 71 50 2 2
Table 4 Proportion of respondents in sample compared by gender and age threshold Table 8 Self reported Faith of Respondents
Age band Total sample Men Women Catholic Christian Born again Christian Muslim No faith No response
Under 30 38% 37% 39% 55 3 18 1 18 2
Under 40 58% 54% 59%
Under 50 77% 74% 78%
Under 60 88% 87% 89%

37

36 e




FREQUENCY TABLES

Table 9 Number of respondents by location
Location

Number of interviewees

Page 40

CW 10 and Middlewich

30

Winsford

Ellesmere Port

Widnes

Chester

Walton

Elton

Wrexham

Helsby

Queensferry

Warrington

Buckley

Northwich

Mold

Backford

Croydon
N =117

e Rl e R AR R R F VR AR NN Y- R NN

Table 10 Respondents by Local Authority area

Council area Number Percentage
Cheshire West and Chester 56 47
Cheshire East 30 25

Halton 10 9
Warrington 10 9

North Wales 10 9

Visiting 1 1

N=117

Table 1 Number of respondents by location type

Location type Number
House 29

Site 84
Parked on land adjacent to house 8
Roadside encampment 3

Table 12 Do you have a permanent address?

YES % NO % No response
78 65% 42 35%5
38 e

Table 13 Are you on the Electoral Roll?
Yes No

No response

22 101

Table 14 Number of cohabiting children under the age of 19

Children under 19 per Number of families

2

Projected number of children

family group associated with this sample
No number specified 5 Unknown

1 24 24

2 15 30

3 13 39

4 10 40

5 4 20

6 1 6

Table 15 Number of respondents living in different size households

Household size

Number of respondents

% in household type

12

10%

1
2 20 16%
3 22 18%
4 19 15%
5 22 18%
6 16 13%
7 3 2%
8 9 7%
Table 16 Size of household ranked by frequency

Household size Frequency %

3 22 18
5 22 18

2 20 16
4 19 15
6 16 13

1 12 10
8 9 7

7 3 2
Unknown 2 1

Table 17 Are you happy living here?
Yes No

Yes and no

No response

96 22 4

3



FREQUENCY TABLES

Table 18 Application for house or site

Yes No No answer

47 68 10

Table 19 What is your work status?

Work status Number with that status % of total sample

Self employed 39 31%

Caring for children 36 29%
Unable to work/ ill health 19 15%
Retired 10 8%

Carer 4 3%
Houseperson/Homemaker 9 7%
Unemployed 6 5%
Student 1 1%
Unknown 1 1%

Table 20 Do you have a National Insurance Number?

Yes No Prefer not to say Not known
107 1 14 3

Table 21 Are you in receipt of benefits?

In receipt Not in receipt Not known
80 42 3

Table 22 Number of respondents registered with a doctor or dentist

Number Percentage
Doctor 16 93
Dentist 100 80
Table 23 Distance travelled to visit doctors and dentists
Less than a mile 1 mile 2 miles 3 miles 4 miles 5 miles or more
Doctor 14 26 34 25 2 15
Dentist 17 16 23 26 2 16

Table 24 Health services used by respondents in the last 12 months

Service type Number Percentage
A&E 22 21

Walk in 49 47

Private care 6 6

Advice from specialist n 10
Midwife/health visitor 6 6
Specialist mental health services n 10

108 100

40 Bty

Page 41

Table 25 Other health advice sought by respondents

Advice type Number Percentage of all responses
Family advice 79 32

Friends and neighbours 37 15

Herbal remedies 29 12

Advice from chemist 59 24

Self care 25 10

Priest or other religious person 12 5

Health helpline 1 0.5

Internet 1 0.5

N =243

Table 26 Disability and health conditions cited by interviewees about themselves

Condition Number Percentage
Mental health conditions 61 53
Learning disability 6 5
Respiratory problems 6
Diabetes/ digestive problems 8 7
Heart condition 3
Muscular skeletal problems 19 17
Cancer 4 4
Neurological problems 5 5

n3 100
Table 27 Disability and health conditions cited by interviewees about family members
Condition Number Percentage
Mental health conditions 42 75
Learning disability 3 5
Diabetes/ digestive problems 7 13
Muscular skeletal problems 4 7

56 100
Table 28 Little interest or pleasure in doing things
Point on scale o 1 2 3
Number of responses 49 29 27 18
Ranking 1 2 3 4
Table 29 Feeling down, depressed or hopeless
Point on scale o 1 2 3
Number of responses 57 22 22 23
Ranking 1 3 3 2

41



FREQUENCY TABLES

Page 42

Table 30 Numbers of respondents who currently have family members in

education by education type

Education type Number
Awaiting place 3
Children too young n

Pre -school 6
Primary 34
Special education 1

Home schooled 12

High school 7
College 2

Table 31 Type of Education Experienced by Respondents

P of Number
High school/apprenticeships and college 7
Education until age 11 24
Home schooled/ bus to site 3
Not accepted in school 4
Not education/ not much 27
No response 37

Table 32 Reasons for bad experiences or not going to school

Reason Number
Bullied /discriminated against 6
Always moving 2

Table 33 How involved do you feel in your Community?

Scale point 1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10
Number of responses 4 3 3 6 15 n 6 16 16 35
Ranking 9 10 8 6 4 6 2 2 1

Table 34 How involved do you feel in the wider Community?

Scale point o 1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 910
Number of responses 2 13 18 16 12 27 15 5 6 03
Ranking 10 5 2 3 6 1 4 8 7 no
42 e

Table 35 Ranked level of satisfaction with a range of services

V satisfied  Satisfied  Neither nor

Dissatisfied

g
=

Neighbours 2 3

‘Wider community 1

Landlord 2

Police

Local schools

Local hospitals

Businesses

Refuse collections

Benefits agency

Health visitor

Council

Doctor

Mental health services

aisivioisioionioisaisioinis
P S D N R TV [ IO PG DS QN S IO B
sialoisiaisiniwiolioisioinion

Niviwi=lai= =it =

Local shops
1= highest ranking

Table 36 Concern about issues in the Community ranked by frequency

Issue Number concerned

Ranking

WIZ IR = IN IR IO TN W WA 1O I

Drug abuse 64

Alcohol abuse 64

Suicide 64

Domestic abuse 50

Family breakdown 38

Grooming 6

Heritage dying 1

Mental health 1

Sexual exploitation 1

Homophobia 1

Lack of sites 1

Table 37 Unfair treatment
Yes No

NiNININE N oo sl == =

No response

m 9

Table 38 Categories of unfair treatment
Examples of unfair treatment

5

Number of examples given

Treated differently 62

Name calling 42

Refused entry or asked to move 23

No access to services or refused appointments 6

Jobs cancelled 5

o:o CHAWREC

43



Page 43

FREQUENCY TABLES

Table 39 Ever suffered abuse or attack? Table 44 If not why not?

Yes No No response Reasons Number Percentage
102 18 5 Given up 1 4%
Not taken seriously 1 4%
Table 40 Categories of abuse and attack experienced No-one cares 5 19%
Type of abuse Number citing this Useless there's no support 2 7%
Called names 75 It's a waste of time 4 15%
Attacked 15 Nothing gets done 3 1%
Abused 8 Sort it out myself 1 4%
Refused 2 Will take the other side 2 7%
Asked to leave 2 Not believed 1 4%
Different treatment a Not listened to 7 25%
N =106 27 100%
Table 41 Numbers experiencing incidents in the last year Table 45 Who would you report it to
Yes No No response Agency Number Percentage
63 56 6 Community group 1 4%
Police 9 35%
L . CAB 2 8%
Table 42 Number of incident types in last year Pt 5 o
Incident type Number reported Sehoo! " o,
Verbal abuse/moving seats 34 Soicitor ] o
Turned away/no service 15 Condiord 5 o
Being followed 7 Focoboon ] o
All of the above 7 Family " S
Physical abuse 6 pye oo

Table 43 Incidents reported

Number Percentage
16 7%
78 83%

Total 94 100%

a4 " 998 CHAWREC



FREQUENCY TABLES

Table 46 Results comparison

Page 44

DOMAIN 2006 2019
Number in sample 93 125
PERCENTAGE OF SAMPLE PERCENTAGE OF SAMPLE
CHARACTERISTIC 2006 2019 CHARACTERISTIC 2006 2019
Catholic 38% 44% Unable to work 14% 15%
Christian 36% 39% Caring for children 19% 30%
Men 30% 37% Is a carer 4% 3%
Women 70% 63% Has a disability 15% 22%
Traveller 14% 61% Benefits 33% 64%
Gypsy 77% 39% Happy where you live 73% 77%
Under 40 63% 58% At address over 5 years 43% 25%
Lives in a house 32% 23% Still travels 29% 51%
Lives on a site 61% 67% Treated unfairly 60% 92
Lives roadside 5% 2% Suffered abuse 47% 85
Lives in Halton Combined figure for 8% Have reported incidents to 16% 17%
Lives in Warrington H&W 28% 8% someone
Lives in East Cheshire 23% 24% Been stopped and searched 25% 34% (16% in last year)
Lives in Cheshire West 45% 45% Received clear explanation why 25% 29%

and Chester

Most prevalent family size

1or 419% lived alone

3 or 5 both at 14%

red with doctor. 9N%, 93%
Doctor less than 2 miles away 75%
Re 40% 82%
Dentist less than 2 miles away 56%
Satisfaction with health 69% 70%
Mental health problem for Not collected in 2006 38%

interviewee or family member

Mental health scores (we used
different measures in 2019)

59% reported stress and 85% of
these were ranked towards the
top of the scale

47% said they or a family
member suffered with mental ill
health. 37% said they had little
interest in everyday life for more
than half the week

36% said they felt depressed for
more than half the week

Current association with 40% 61%
education

Talked about own education 33% 70%
Has NINO 76% 86%
Self employed 15% 32%

46

o:o CHAWREC

47



Page 45

020 CHAWREC

‘ CHESHIRE, HALTON & WARRINGTON
RACE & EQUALITY CENTRE

Cheshire Halton & Warrington Race & Equality Centre
The Unity Centre, 17 Cuppin Street, Chester CH1 2BN

Tel: 01244 400730 Fax: 01244 400722 E-mail: office@chawrec.org.uk

© O @CHAWREC www.chawrec.org.uk

IRISH COMMUMNITY CARE

Irish Community Care
151 Dale Street, Liverpool, L2 2AH

Tel: 0151 237 3987

@ @IrishCommunityCare1 ) @IrishCommCare  www.iccm.org.uk



This page is intentionally left blank



Page 47 Agenda Item 8

Cheshire E@,

Council%

FORWARD PLAN FOR THE PERIOD ENDING 28™ FEBRUARY 2021

This Plan sets out the key decisions which the Executive expects to take over the period
indicated above. The Plan is rolled forward every month. A key decision is defined in the
Council’'s Constitution as:

“an executive decision which is likely —

(a) toresultin the local authority incurring expenditure which is, or the making of
savings which are, significant having regard to the local authority’s budget for
the service or function to which the decision relates; or

(b)  to be significant in terms of its effects on communities living or working in an
area comprising one or more wards or electoral divisions in the area of the
local authority.

For the purpose of the above, savings or expenditure are “significant” if they are
equal to or greater than £1M.”

Reports relevant to key decisions, and any listed background documents, may be viewed
at any of the Council’s Offices/Information Centres 5 days before the decision is to be
made. Copies of, or extracts from, these documents may be obtained on the payment of a
reasonable fee from the following address:

Democratic Services Team

Cheshire East Council

c/o Westfields, Middlewich Road, Sandbach Cheshire CW11 1HZ
Telephone: 01270 686472

However, it is not possible to make available for viewing or to supply copies of reports or
documents the publication of which is restricted due to confidentiality of the information
contained.

A record of each key decision is published within 6 days of it having been made. This is
open for public inspection on the Council's Website, at Council Information Centres and at
Council Offices.

This Forward Plan also provides notice that the Cabinet, or a Portfolio Holder, may decide
to take a decision in private, that is, with the public and press excluded from the meeting.
In accordance with the Local Authorities (Executive Arrangements) (Meetings and Access
to Information) (England) Regulations 2012, 28 clear days’ notice must be given of any
decision to be taken in private by the Cabinet or a Portfolio Holder, with provision for the
public to make representations as to why the decision should be taken in public. In such
cases, Members of the Council and the public may make representations in writing to the
Democratic Services Team Manager using the contact details below. A further notice of
intention to hold the meeting in private must then be published 5 clear days before the



Page 48

meeting, setting out any representations received about why the meeting should be held in
public, together with a response from the Leader and the Cabinet.

The list of decisions in this Forward Plan indicates whether a decision is to be taken in
private, with the reason category for the decision being taken in private being drawn from
the list overleaf:

1. Information relating to an individual

2. Information which is likely to reveal the identity of an individual

3. Information relating to the financial or business affairs of any particular person
(including to authority holding that information)

4. Information relating to any consultations or negotiations, or contemplated
consultations or negotiations, in connection with any labour relations matter arising
between the authority or a Minister of the Crown and employees of, or office
holders under the authority

5. Information in respect of which a claim to legal and professional privilege could be
maintained in legal proceedings

6. Information which reveals that the authority proposes (a) to give under any
enactment a notice under or by virtue of which requirements are imposed on a
person; or (b) to make an order or direction under any enactment

7. Information relating to any action taken or to be taken in connection with the
prevention, investigation of prosecution of crime

If you would like to make representations about any decision to be conducted in private at
a meeting, please email:

Paul Mountford, Executive Democratic Services Officer
paul.mountford@cheshireeast.gov.uk

Such representations must be received at least 10 clear working days before the date of
the Cabinet or Portfolio Holder meeting concerned.

Where it has not been possible to meet the 28 clear day rule for publication of notice of a
key decision or intention to meet in private, the relevant notices will be published as soon
as possible in accordance with the requirements of the Constitution.

The law and the Council's Constitution provide for urgent key decisions to be made. Any
decision made in this way will be published in the same way.


mailto:paul.mountford@cheshireeast.gov.uk

Cheshire E@J

CouncilZ
Forward Plan
Key Decision Decisions to be Taken Decision Maker Expected Proposed How to make Private/
and Date of Consultation representation | Confidential
Private Decision to the decision and
Non-Key made paragraph
Decision number

61 abed



Key Decision Decisions to be Decision Maker Expected Proposed How to make Private/
Taken Date of Consultation representation | Confidential
Decision to the decision and
made paragraph
number

CE 19/20-53 - ;I'ownts Fur;dP1 Toyvg Cabinet 10 Nov 2020 Jez Goodman N/A
nvestmen an rewe

grewe fi Town Board

égeneration To authorise officers in
and Investment consultation with relevant
Programme Portfolio Holders to

facilitate arrangements
for the Council to act as
Accountable Body for the
Crewe Town Board; to
delegate authority on
economic development
and regeneration matters
to the Portfolio Holder for
Environment and
Regeneration; and to
authorise the
development and
submission of a Crewe
Town Investment Plan.

Future High Streets Fund
To authorise officers in
consultation with relevant
Portfolio Holders to
accept a government
grant to support the
regeneration of Crewe
town centre, with
associated financial
approvals.

Crewe HS2 Hub

To consider an update on
the HS2 programme
including the Covid
Impact Assessment for
the Crewe hub station
scheme and business
case; and to approve the
further development of
the revised (post-Covid)
scheme.

0gG abed



Key Decision Decisions to be Decision Maker Expected Proposed How to make Private/
Taken Date of Consultation representation | Confidential
Decision to the decision and
made paragraph
number
CE 20/21-9 The household waste | Cabinet 10 Nov 2020 Ralph Kemp, N/A
Household recycling centre Corporate
Waste Recycling | contract is due for Manager for
Centre New renewal in 2023 and Commissioning
Contract Service | the open
Provision procurement process
will start in 2021. The
report will present a
review of the current
contract and options
available for how the
service could be run
in the future.
CE 20/21-10 The review and Cabinet 10 Nov 2020 Shelley Brough N/A
Social Value refresh of the
Policy Council’s Social

Value Policy. The
new policy will be
underpinned by a
new set of supportive
resources to facilitate
the implementation
of the policy and the
delivery of effective
social value and
corporate social
responsibility.

TG abed



Key Decision Decisions to be Decision Maker Expected Proposed How to make Private/
Taken Date of Consultation representation | Confidential
Decision to the decision and
made paragraph
number
CE 19/20-42 To seek authority to enter | Portfolio Holder for | November Paul Bayley Fully exempt
Congleton into the construction Communities 2020 - para 3

Leisure Centre
Redevelopment
Project

contract with Rock
Merchanting (T/A Pulse
Fitness) for the
redevelopment of

Congleton Leisure Centre.

26 abed



Key Decision Decisions to be Decision Maker Expected Proposed How to make Private/
Taken Date of Consultation representation | Confidential
Decision to the decision and
made paragraph

number

CE 20/21-6 To approve the Cabinet 1 Dec 2020 Karen Carsberg, | N/A

Development of | progression of the Strategic Housing

a Gypsy and project, subject to and Intelligence

Traveller Transit
Site

planning approval, to
enable the scheme
to be developed in
line with the capital
budget outlined
within the report; and
to authorise the
Executive Director of
Place, in consultation
with the Portfolio
Holder for
Environment and
Regeneration and
the Portfolio Holder
for Communities, to
enter into a
construction contract
with the preferred
bidder and make
related decisions to
deliver the Cledford
Hall project.

Manager

€g abed



Key Decision Decisions to be Decision Maker Expected Proposed How to make Private/
Taken Date of Consultation representation | Confidential
Decision to the decision and
made paragraph
number

CE 20/21-7 To receive an update Cabinet 1 Dec 2020 Jane Burns, N/A
Covid-19 - report on the Council’s Executive

Update on response to Covid-19 and Director of

Response and the Recovery Plan. Corporate

Recovery Services

To note the financial
effects of Covid-19 on the
Council, as regards
additional expenditure and
loss of income, and to
consider the potential
options for managing
residual financial
implications within the
Council’s Medium-Term
Financial Strategy.

An update report will be
presented to each
successive Cabinet
meeting up to and
including 4t May 2021.

G abed



Key Decision Decisions to be Decision Maker Expected Proposed How to make Private/
Taken Date of Consultation representation | Confidential
Decision to the decision and
made paragraph
number
CE 20/21-14 To provide Cabinet Cabinet 1 Dec 2020 Nichola N/A
Adult Social with an overview of Thompson,
Care: Our the Council’'s Director of

Covid-19 Winter
Plan 2020/21

response to the
Government’s
publication of the
adult social care
winter plan. Officers
are to be authorised
where necessary to
implement the adult
social care
recommendations/ac
tions.

Commissioning

GG abed



Key Decision

Decisions to be
Taken

Decision Maker

Expected
Date of
Decision

Proposed
Consultation

How to make
representation
to the decision

made

Private/
Confidential
and
paragraph
number

CE 20/21-15
Better Care
Fund S75
Agreement

To enter into a new
S75 Partnership
Agreement with the
local health partner
(NHS Cheshire
Clinical
Commissioning
Group) to cover the
period from 1st April
2020 until 31st
March 2021 with the
option to extend the
agreement for a
further period of one
year, subject to there
being a national
requirement to
operate the Better
Care Fund as a
Section 75 pooled
budget agreement
until 2021/22.

Cabinet

1 Dec 2020

Nichola
Thompson,
Director of
Commissioning

N/A

CE 19/20-49
Council Tax
Base 2021-22

For Cabinet to consider
the Council Tax Base for
Cheshire East and identify
any changes to the
calculation of the tax base
for 2021-22 with a view to
recommending the amount
calculated to Council.

Council

16 Dec 2020

Paul Manning

N/A

oG abed



Key Decision Decisions to be Decision Maker Expected Proposed How to make Private/
Taken Date of Consultation representation | Confidential
Decision to the decision and
made paragraph
number
CE 20/21-11 To approve the re- Cabinet 12 Jan 2021 Denise Griffiths N/A
Procurement of | procurement of facilities
Facilities management services, to
Management include mainten_ance,
Service and the statutory cor’lnpllance and
o energy su
Council's manggemzﬁtyand to
Energy Supply authorise officers to take
all necessary actions to
implement the proposal.

CE 20/21-8 To authorise Officers | Cabinet 2 Feb 2021 Ralph Kemp, N/A
Carbon Action to take all necessary Corporate
Plan Key actions relating to Manager for
Decisions land allocation and Commissioning

procurements for

initial projects

contributing to

sustainable energy

generation and green

sequestration.
CE 20/21-16 To note and comment on Cabinet 2 Feb 2021 N/A
Third Quarter the three quarter year
Review finance and performance
(Finance) position, and to approve
2020/21 any supplementary

estimates and virements.

)G abed



Key Decision Decisions to be Decision Maker Expected Proposed How to make Private/
Taken Date of Consultation representation | Confidential
Decision to the decision and
made paragraph
number
CE 19/20-50 To approve the Medium Council 17 Feb 2021 Corporate N/A
Medium Term Term Financial Strategy Overview and
Financial 2021-25 incorporating the Scrutiny Committee
- Council’s priorities, budget, — 1 February 2021
gérategy 2021 policy proposals and ] Cabinet — 2ry
capital programme. The February 2021

report will include the
capital, treasury
management, investment
and reserves strategies.

3G abed



Key Decision Decisions to be Decision Maker Expected Proposed How to make Private/
Taken Date of Consultation representation | Confidential
Decision to the decision and
made paragraph

number

CE 20/21-3 To approve Cabinet 9 Mar 2021 N/A

Flowerpot procurement of works

Junction to improve Flowerpot

Improvement Junction, utilising the

Scheme

NPIF allocation from
DfT and local funding
contributions from
s106 contributions
and council match
funding. Authorise the
preparation and
making of a CPO
relating to land
required for the
junction improvements
where this cannot be
acquired through
negotiation, and
delegate authority to
the Director of
Infrastructure and
Highways, in
consultation with the
Portfolio Holder for
Strategic Transport to
finalise the scheme
details and enter into
an agreement with the
Council’s appointed
Highways Term
Services to deliver the
scheme.

6G abed



Key Decision

Decisions to be

Decision Maker Expected Proposed How to make Private/
Taken Date of Consultation representation | Confidential
Decision to the decision and
made paragraph
number

CE 18/19-60 To seek approval to Cabinet 4 May 2021 David Malcolm N/A
The Minerals consult on the first draft of
and Waste the Minerals and Waste

Development
Plan

Development Plan.

09 abed



Page 61 Agenda Item 9

<Y
ey

o
Cheshire Eas?i

Council%

Working for a brighter futuret together

Version
Number: 1

Key Decision N

Date First
Published: N/A

Health and Adult Social Care and Communities Overview and
Scrutiny Committee

Date of Meeting: 03 December 2020
Report Title: Work Programme

Senior Officer: Mark Palethorpe, Executive Director of People

1. Report Summary

1.1. To review items in the work programme listed in the schedule attached,
together with any other items suggested by committee members.

2. Recommendation

2.1. To approve the work programme, subject to the agreement to add new items
or delete items that no longer require any scrutiny activity.

3. Reason for Recommendation

3.1. Itis good practice to regularly review the work programme and update it as
required.

4. Background

4.1. The committee has responsibility for updating and approving its own work
programme. Scrutiny liaison meetings — held between the Chairman and
Vice-Chairman of the committee, alongside the portfolio holders and key
senior officers — ensure that there is continued awareness and discussion of
upcoming policies, strategies and decisions within the committee’s remit
area.

5. Determining Which Items Should be Added to the Work Programme

5.1. When selecting potential topics, members should have regard to the
Council’s three year plan and to the criteria listed below, which should be
considered to determine whether scrutiny activity is appropriate.

OFFICIAL



Page 62

5.2. The following questions should be considered by the committee when
determining whether to add new work programme items, or delete existing
items:

e Does the issue fall within a corporate priority?
e Isthe issue of key interest to the public?

e Does the matter relate to a poor or declining performing service for
which there is no obvious explanation?

e Isthere a pattern of budgetary overspends or underspends?

e Is it a matter raised by external audit management letters and or
audit reports?

e |s there a high level of dissatisfaction with the service?

5.3. The committee should not add any items to its work programme (and should
delete any existing items) that fall under any one of the following:

The topic is already being addressed elsewhere by another body (i.e.
this committee would be duplicating work)

e The matter is sub-judice
e Scrutiny would not add value to the matter

e The committee is unlikely to be able to conclude an investigation
within a specified or required timescale

6. Implications of the Recommendations

6.1. There are no implications to legal or financial matters, equality, human
resources, risk management, or for rural communities, children and young
people or public health.

7. Ward Members Affected

7.1.  All
8. Access to Information

8.1. The background papers can be inspected by contacting the report author.
9. Contact Information

9.1. Any questions relating to this report should be directed to the following
officer:

OFFICIAL



Page 63

Name: Joel Hammond-Gant
Job Title: Scrutiny Officer

Email: joel.nammond-gant@cheshireeast.gov.uk

OFFICIAL



This page is intentionally left blank



Work Programme

Health and Adult Social Care and Communities Overview and Scrutiny Committee

Updated 09.11.20

03.12.20 14.01.21 04.02.21 04.03.21 15.04.21 06.05.21
10.00am 10.00am 10.00am 10.00am 10.00am 10.00am
Virtual Committee | Committee | Committee | Committee | Committee
meeting Suite, Suite, Suite, Suite, Suite,
Westfields | Westfields | Westfields | Westfields | Westfields
Item Purpose Lead Officer Portfolios Suggested | Scrutiny role Corporate Date
by priorities
Covid-19 Update To receive an update on care homes, | Executive Adult Social Chairman Overview People live Standing NS
domiciliary care, complex care and Director of Care and well and for | item until @
test, trace and isolate, in the context People Health longer further D
. . ) o)}
of the Covid-19 pandemic response notice. (1
and recovery.
We're Still Here To consider the report from Irish Executive Adult Social Committee | Consider thisup | Our local 03.12.20
(Gypsy and Traveller | Community Care, produced alongside | Director People | Care and to date communities | (moved
Welfare) members of the gypsy and traveller / CWacC / Irish Health information and | are strong back from
communities in the Cheshire and Community data and decide and Oct)
Warrington footprint. Care Communities how to further supportive
deal with the
matter, if at all. People live
well and for
longer
OFFICIAL



Work Programme

Health and Adult Social Care and Communities Overview and Scrutiny Committee

Updated 09.11.20

Pre-Budget 2021/22 | To consider the Pre-Budget 2021/22 Director of Adult Social Committee | Budget scrutiny Our local 14.01.20 -
Consultation Consultation proposals that fall within | Finance and Care and communities | moved
the remit of the committee. Customer Health are strong back from
Services and Dec 20
Communities supportive
Executive
Director of Public Health People live
People and Corporate well and for
Services longer
Sustainability of Following the meeting in March 2020, | East Cheshire Adult Social Committee | Quarterly Our local 14.01.21
Health Services in the committee decided to request NHS Trust / Mid | Care and monitoring of communities
Cheshire East quarterly updates from NHS Trusts on | Cheshire NHS Health service are strong
the sustainability / fragility of services. | Trust / CWP / sustainability and U
Should issues arise in between these, | Cheshire CCGs supportive 3
updates will be brought to committee D
as and when required. People live %
well and for
longer
Emerging Futures To consider an update on how Director of Communities | Committee | Performance Our local 14.01.21
effective/successful the Emerging Commissioning (Clir s monitoring communities
Futures contract has been in / Head of Adult Social Brookfield) are strong
supporting people’s health issues and | Housing Care and and
re-housing them, as well as what Health supportive
wider impacts Emerging Futures
properties have had on local People live
communities due to rises in anti-social well and for
behaviour. longer
OFFICIAL



Work Programme

Health and Adult Social Care and Communities Overview and Scrutiny Committee

Updated 09.11.20

Provision of Specialist | To consider a further update on the NHS England / Adult Social Committee | Monitoring People live TBD - Jan
Orthodontic and Oral | plans to develop a new model of care | NHS Care and development of | well and for | 2021
Surgery Services in for specialist orthodontic and oral Improvement Health new model of longer
Cheshire East surgery services. care
Everybody Sport and | To receive the annual report of Chief Executive, | Communities | Committee | Performance People live 04.02.21
Recreation — Annual | Everybody Sport and Recreation. ESAR monitoring well and for
Report 2019-20 longer
Cheshire and Wirral To consider the 2020/21 Quality CW°pP Adult Social CWP Performance People live 06.05.21
Partnership NHS Account and provide feedback to be Care and monitoring well and for
Foundation Trust — included in the final version of the Health longer
Quality Accounts accounts.
2020/21 U
East Cheshire NHS To consider the 2020/21 Quality East Cheshire Adult Social East Performance People live 06.05.21 C%
Trust — Quality Account and provide feedback to be NHS Trust Care and Cheshire monitoring well and for 5
Accounts 2020/21 included in the final version of the Health NHS Trust longer ~

accounts.
Mid Cheshire NHS To consider the 2020/21 Quality Mid Cheshire Adult Social Mid Performance People live 06.05.21
Trust — Quality Account and provide feedback to be NHS Trust Care and Cheshire monitoring well and for
Accounts 2020/21 included in the final version of the Health NHS Trust longer

accounts.

OFFICIAL



Work Programme

Health and Adult Social Care and Communities Overview and Scrutiny Committee

Updated 09.11.20

oY olEd

Review of Autism To consider a report from the CwWP Adult Social Committee | Performance People live To be
Screening at Cheshire and Wirral Partnership Care and (following monitoring well and for | included
Cheshire’s Custody (CWP) on autism screening at Health CWP Quality longer on the
Suites Cheshire’s custody suites, following a Account agenda
campaign to identify suspects with, or 2016/17) when the
suspected of having, a condition on necessary
the Autistic Spectrum. informatio
nis
available
to provide
an update.
Update on the Re- Following the previous update in NHS Eastern Adult Social Committee | Performance People live TBD
design of Adults and | February 2020, to consider the Cheshire CCG/ | Care and monitoring well and for
Older People’s progress made to date by health CWP / CEC Health longer
Mental Health partners to establish the new,
Services in Cheshire redesigned service provision for adults
East and older people’s mental health
services in Cheshire East, as well as
performance against key targets and
objectives.
Director of Public To receive the annual report of the Acting Director | Adult Social Committee | Performance People live TBD
Health Annual Report | Director of Public Health of Public Health | Care and monitoring well and for
2019/20 Health longer
Public Health
and Corporate
Services
OFFICIAL



Work Programme Health and Adult Social Care and Communities Overview and Scrutiny Committee Updated 09.11.20

Syrian Vulnerable To consider an update on the Syrian Executive Chairman Reviewing People live TBD
Person Resettlement | Vulnerable Person Resettlement Director People progress of well and for
Programme Programme programme longer

Future potential items:

e Update on Care Communities (performance and value for money)

e Review of council enforcement activities

e Performance against upcoming contract for Congleton Leisure Centre
e Safe and Well Initiative — Cheshire Fire and Rescue

e Locations of vulnerable housing and crisis beds in the borough

69 abed

OFFICIAL



This page is intentionally left blank



	Agenda
	2 Minutes of Previous meeting
	6 Covid-19 Update
	7 Gypsy, Roma and Traveller Community Welfare - We're Still Here
	FINAL REPORT (002)

	8 Forward Plan
	9 Work Programme
	Work Programme - Health and Adult Social Care and Communities OSC


